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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Pennsville Township School District
County of Salem

Pennsville, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the
Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District in the County of Salem for the year
ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated November 30, 2011.

As part of our audit, we performed procedures required by the New Jersey Department of Education,
and the findings and results thereof are disclosed on the following pages, as listed in the accompanying
table of contents.

This report is intended for the information of the Pennsville Township Board of Education's
management and the New Jersey Department of Education. However, this report is a matter of public
record and its distribution is not limited.

Respectfully submitted,

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant #86
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

November 30, 2011

1301 NortH BrOAD STREET - WOODBURY, NEW JERSEY 08096-1293 -1- 1252 Kincs HigHwaY - SwEDESBORO, NEW JERSEY 08085
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ADMINISTRATIVE FINDINGS - FINANCIAL, COMPLIANCE, AND PERFORMANCE
Scope of Audit
The audit covered the financial transactions of the Board Secretary/School Business Administrator and
the Treasurer of School Moneys, the activities of the Board of Education, and the records of the various
funds under the auspices of the Board of Education.
Administrative Practices and Procedures

Insurance

~ Fire insurance coverage was carried in the amounts as detailed on Exhibit J-13, Insurance Schedule |
contained in the District's C.A.F.R.

Official's Bonds (N.J.S.A. 184:17-26, 184:17-32)

Name Position Amount
John J. Recchinti Business Administrator/Board Secretary $ 10,000.00
Alberta S. Peterson Treasurer $ 210,000.00

Financial Planning, Accounting, and Reporting
Examination of Claims |

An examination of claims paid during the period under review did not indicate any discrepancies with
respect to signatures, certification, or supporting documentation.

Payroll Account

The net salaries of all employees of the Board were deposited in the Payroll Account. Employees'
payroll deductions and employer's share of fringe benefits were deposited in the Payroll Agency
Account.

All payrolls were approved by the Superintendent and were certified by the President of the Board and
the Board Secretary/Business Administrator.

Salary withholdings were promptly remitted to the proper agencies, including health benefits
withholding due to the General Fund. . ‘

Payrolls were delivered to the Treasurer of School Moneys with a warrant to his order for the full
amount of each payroll.

The required certification (E-CERT1) of compliance with requirements for income tax on
compensation of administrators (superintendent, assistant superintendents, and business administrator)
to the New Jersey Department of Treasury was filed by the March 15 due date.

Reporting of employee compensation for income tax related purposes complied with federal and state
regulations regarding the compensation which is required to be reported.

Reserve for Encumbrances and Accounts Payable

A review of outstanding issued purchase orders was made as of June 30 for proper classification of
orders as reserve for encumbrances and accounts payable.

District personnel did perform an analysis of outstanding purchase orders at June 30 and prepare the
separate listings of purchase orders comprising the balance sheet account balances for accounts payable
and reserve for encumbrances.

2



Payments were made with proper authorization for amounts which exceeded the original approved
purchase order amounts.

Travel

The District obtained written approval of the Executive County Superintendent for a travel event that
exceeded $5,000.00 as required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-5.9.

The District has an approved board travel policy as required by N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-6.13 and N.J.S.A.
18A:11-12. ’

Payments for travel by employees were approved before completion of the travel event.
Classification of Expenditures
The coding of expenditures was tested for proper classification in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-
16.2(f) as part of our test of transactions of randomly selected expenditure items. We also reviewed
the coding of all expenditures included in our compliance and single audit testing procedures. In
addition to randomly selecting a test sample, our sample selection specifically targeted administrative
coding classifications to determine overall reliability and compliance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-8.3. As
a result of the procedures performed, a transaction error rate of 0.00% overall was noted and no
additional procedures were deemed necessary to test the propriety of expenditure classification.
General Classification -
Finding:
During our tests of transactions, it was noted that an ice machine was purchased and
mischarged to a fund 11 account. This expense was properly reclassified to a fund 12
account without creating an overexpenditure. Since this was an unintentional miscoding
and the reclassification did not create an overexpenditure, no recommendation is
necessary.

Administrative Classification - Our test of administrative staff salaries found that
salaries were properly charged to the administrative function budget line items.

Board Secretary’s Records

Our review of the financial and accounting records maintained by the Board Secretary disclosed the
following items.

Bids received were summarized in the minutes (N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-21).

Acknowledgment of the Board's receipt of the Board Secretary's and the Treasurer's monthly financial
reports was included in the minutes.

No budgetary line accounts were overexpended during the fiscal year and at June 30.

The Board Secretary filed monthly certifications of the budgetary line items status which are consistent
with the actual budgetary records.

Payments to vendors were not made prior to the receipt of goods.
Finding:
The capital asset records were updated for the additions and disposals of capital assets made during the

year. However, these were not done in a timely fashion and need to be updated regularly and made
available for audit. No recommendation is warranted at this time.
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The District is maximizing its efforts under the Special Education Medicaid Initiative (SEMI) Program
for obtaining federal funding for special education services.

The District made board approved line-item transfers during the year and maintained a monthly transfer
report and year-to-date transfers in a format prescribed by the Commissioner.

The District used an E-Rate consultant during the audit year. This consultant properly filed the
appropriate claim forms on a timely basis for the District. Some refunds have beenreceived for E-Rate
reimbursements for the school year 2010-11. Due to the possibility in a change in the discount rate,

an accurate refund receivable could not be determined. Thus, said refund receivables has not been
recorded on the District’s books as of June 30, 2011.

Finding:

Audit adjustments were given to the Board Secretary/Business Administrator, yet some adjustments
were not posted to the District’s records. These adjustments are needed in order to ensure that the
correct balances are being maintained. Due to the fact that the unposted adjustments were simply
overlooked, no recommendation is warranted at this time. .

Finding:

There are a total of seven checks outstanding in the payroll account, the agency account, and one of the
student activity accounts that are over a year old. These checks need to be canceled by the Board of
Education. Since these checks are very immaterial in dollar amount, no recommendation is needed.

Treasurer's Records

The following items were noted during our review of the records of the Treasurer.

The Treasurer’s records were maintained by an employee of the board appointed to the position of
Treasurer of School Moneys.

The Treasurer performed cash reconciliations for the General Operating Account, Payroll Account, and
- Payroll Agency Account (N.J.S.A. 18A:17-9).

All cash receipts were promptly deposited (N.J.S.A. 18A:17-34, 18A:17-9.1).
The Treasurer’s records were in agreement with the records of the Board Secretary.

Elementary and Secondary Education Act (E.S.E.A.)/Improving America's Schools Act (1.A.S.A.) as
Reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001

The E.S.E.A./N.C.L.B. financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the C.A.F.R.
This section of the C.A.F.R. documents the financial position pertaining to the projects under Titles I and
VI of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act as amended and reauthorized.

A study of compliance for E.S.E.A. indicated no areas of noncompliance and/or questionable costs.

Salary charges were documented each pay period and allocated salary charges for teaching staff members
was supported by employee time sheets.

Due to grantor balances were returned or disposed of in accordance with the grant agreement.
Other Special Federal and/or State Projects

The District's special projects were approved as listed on Schedule A and Schedule B located in the
C.AFR.



Our audit of the federal and state funds on a test basis, indicated that obligations and expenditures were
incurred during the fiscal year or project period for which the project was approved.

The financial exhibits are contained within the Special Revenue Section of the C.A.F.R. This section
of the C.A.F.R. documents the financial position pertaining to the aforementioned special projects.

The study of compliance for the special projects indicated no areas of noncompliance and/or
questionable costs.

ILD.E.A. PartB
Separate accounting was maintained for each épproval project.

Grant application approvals and acceptance of grant funds were made by Board resolution and recorded
in the minutes.

T.P.A.F. Reimbursement

Our audit procedures included a test of the biweekly reimbursements (electronic, but district’s can print
out the DOENET screen for an auditor) filed with the Department of Education for district employees
who are members of the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund. No exceptions were noted.

Nonpublic State Aid _
Project Completion Reports were finalized and transmitted to the Department by the due date.
School Purchasing Programs

Contracts and Agreements Requiring Advertisement for Bids

Effective July 1, 2010 and thereafter, the bid threshold in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-2 and
18A:18A-3(a) are $36,000.00 and $26,000.00, respectively. The law regulating bidding for public
school student transportation contracts under N.J.S.A. 18A:39-3 is currently $17,200.00.

The Board of Education has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any category
will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year. Where question arises as to whether any
contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the Solicitor's opinion should be sought
before a commitment is made.

‘Based on the results of our examination, we did not note any individual payments, contracts, or
agreements made for the performance of any work or goods or services in excess of the statutory
thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of N.J.S.A.
18A:18A-4, amended.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts or agreements for "Professional
Services" per N.J.S.A. 18A:18A-5.

Schoo! Food Service

The ﬁl}ancial transactions and statistical records of the school food service fund were reviewed. The
financial accounts, meal count records, and eligibility applications were reviewed on a test-check basis.

Cash receipts and bank records were reviewed for timely deposit.

The District utilizes a food service management company (FSMC) and is depositing and expending
program monies in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:17-34 and 19-1 through 19-4.1. Provisions of the
FSMC contract/addendum were reviewed and audited. The FSMC contract includes an operating
results provision which guarantees that the food services program will make a profit. The operating
results provision has been met. No exceptions were noted.
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Expenditures were separately recorded as food, labor, and other costs. Vendor invoices were reviewed
and costs verified. Inventory records on food supply items were currently maintained and properly
applied in determining the cost of food and supplies used.

The cash disbursements records reflected expenditures for program related goods and services. The
appropriate revenue and expenditure records were maintained in order to substantiate the non-profit
~ status of the school food service. Net cash resources did not exceed three months average expenditures.

Time sheets were reviewed and labor costs verified. Payroll records were maintained on all school food
services' employees authorized by the Board of Education. No exceptions were noted.

The number of meals claimed for reimbursement was verified against sales and meal count records.
As part of the claims review process the Edit Check Worksheet was completed. Reimbursement claims
were submitted/certified in a timely manner.

Applications for free and reduced price meals were reviewed for completeness and accuracy. The
number of free and reduced price meals claimed as served was compared to the number of valid
applications on file, times the number of operating days, on a school by school basis. The free and
reduced price meal and free milk policy was reviewed for uniform administration throughout the school
system. Sites approved to participate in Provisions were examined for compliance with all counting

and claiming requirements. The required verification procedures for free and reduced price
applications were completed and available for review.

Food distribution program commodities were received and a single inventory was maintained on a first-
_in, first-out basis. No exceptions were noted.

Exhibits reflecting Child Nutrition Program operations are included in the section entitled Enterprise
Fund, Section G of the C.A.F.R.

Student Body Activities

During our review of the student activity funds, the following items were noted.

The Board had a policy that clearly established the regulation of student activity funds.

Cash receipts and disbursements were properly recorded and had adequate supporting documentation.
Receipts were deposited on a timely basis.

Application for State School Aid

Our audit procedures included tests of information reported in the October 15, 2010 Application for
State School Aid (A.S.S.A.) for on-roll, private schools for the handicapped, low-income, and bilingual.
We also performed a review of the District's procedures related to its completion. The information on
the A.S.S.A. was compared to the District's workpapers without exception. The information that was
included on the workpapers was verified without exception. The results of our procedures are presented
- in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

The District maintained workpapers on the prescribed state forms or their equivalent.

The District written procedufes appear to be adequate for the recording of student enrollment data.

Unemployment Compensation Insurance Trust Fund

The Board had adopted the direct reimbursement method and has established an unemployment
compensation insurance expendable trust fund.



Pupil Transportation

Our audit procedures included a test of on-roll status reported in the 2010-11 District Report of
Transported Resident Students (DRTRS). The information that was included on the DRTRS was
verified to the DRTRS Eligibility Summary Report without exception. The results of our procedures
are presented in the Schedule of Audited Enrollments.

Our procedures also included a review of trahsportation related contracts and purchases. Based on our
review, the District complied with proper bidding procedures and award of contracts. No exceptions
were noted in our review of transportation related purchases of goods and services.

Facilities and Capital Assets

Our procedures included a review of the transfer of local funds from the general fund or from the
capital reserve account, and awarding of contracts for eligible facilities construction.

Contracts were not recorded awarded prior to signing of the grant.
Follow-Up On Prior Years' Findings |

Not Applicable

Acknowledgment

We received the complete cooperation of all the officials of the School District, and we greatly
appreciate the courtesies extended to the members of the audit team.



SCHEDULE OF AUDITED ENROLLMENTS

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
APPLICATION FOR STATE SCHOOL AID SUMMARY
Enrollment As Of October 15, 2010

2011-12 Application For State School Aid . Sample For Verification Private Schools for Disabled Resident Low Income Sample For Verification Resident LEP Low Income Sample For Verification Resident LEP NOT Low Income Sample For Verification
Reported On Reported On Sample Verified Per Errors Per Reported On Reported On  Reported On Sample Verified To Reported On  Reported On Sample  Verified To Reported On  Reported On Sample Verified To
ASSA Workpapers Selected From Registers Registers ASSA Sample ASSA Waorkpapers Sclected  Application ASSA  Workpapers Selected  Test Score ASSA Workpapers Selected  Application
On Roll On Roll Errors Workpapers On Roll On Roll As Private For Sample Sample As Low As Low From And Sample  AsLEP Low As LEP Low From And Sample  AsNOT Low As NOT Low From And Sample
Full Shared Full Shared Full Shared Full Shared Full Shared Full Shared Schools Verification _ Verified Errors Income Income Errors Workpapers _ Register Errors Income Income Errors Workpapers __ Register Errors Income Income Errors Worl Register Errors
Half-day preschool 3 years old 10.0 - 10.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 60 6.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . .
Half-day preschool 4 years old 10.0 - 10.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 3.0 30 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Half-day kindergarten 140.0 - 140.0 - - - 21 - 21 - - - - - - - 43.0 43.0 - 7.0 70 - 1.0 10 - 8] 1.0 - 2.0 20 - 20 20 -
One 1280 - 128.0 - - - 19 - 19 - - - - - - - 340 340 - 8.0 8.0 - 1.0 10 - 1.0 1.0 - - - - - - -
Two 119.0 - 119.0 - - - 18 - 18 - - - - - - - 280 280 - 9.0 9.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Three 1270 - 127.0 - - - 19 - 19 - - - - - - - 410 41.0 - 17.0 17.0 - - - - - - - 1.0 1.0 - 1.0 1.0 -
Four 1190 - 119.0 - - - 18 - . 18 - - - - - - - 240 240 - 10.0 10.0 - Lo 1o - 1o 10 - - - - - - -
Five 139.0 - 139.0 - - - 21 - 21 - - - - - - - 380 380 - 1.0 11.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Six 1220 - 122.0 -o- - - 18 - 18 - - - - - - - 34.0 34.0 - . 120 120 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Seven 125.0 - 125.0 - - - 19 - 19 - - - - - - - 31.0 310 - 150 150 - 20 20 - 20 2.0 - - - - - - -
Eight 127.0 - 127.0 - - - 19 - 19 - - - - - - - 320 320 - 9.0 9.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Nine 90.0 - 90.0 - - - 13 - 13 - - - - - - - 16.0 16.0 - 14.0 14.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Ten 92.0 - 920 - - - 14 - 14 - - - - - - - 14.0 14.0 - 7.0 7.0 - - - - - - . - - . . - -
Eleven 91.0 40 91.0 4.0 - - 14 - 14 - - - - - - - 17.0 i7.0 - 70 70 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Twelve 108.0 10.0 108.0 10.0 - - 16 - 16 - - - - - - - 9.0 9.0 - 6.0 6.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Adult HS. (15+Cr) - - - - - - - - . - B - - - - . - - . . . . B . . . . . . . . A
Adult HS. (1-14 Cr) - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 1,547.0 14.0 1,547.0 140 - - 229.0 - 22%.0 - - - - - - - - 370.0 370.0 - 132.0 132.0 - 5.0 5.0 - 50 5.0 - 3.0 30 - 3.0 3.0 -
Special Ed - Elementary 131.0 - 131.0 - ©o- - 20.0 - 20.0 - - - 2.0 1.0 1.0 - 55.0 55.0 - 90 9.0 - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Special Ed - Middle School 84.0 - 84.0 - - - 13.0 - 13.0 - - - - - - - 280 280 - 1.0 1.0 - - - - - - - - - - - . -
Special Ed - High School 103.0 23.0 103.0 230 - - 15.0 - 150 - - - 4.0 1.0 L0 - 43.0 430 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Sent to CSSD - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - . - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Subtotal 318.0 23.0 318.0 23.0 N N 480 - 480 N N B 6.0 2.0 2.0 - 126.0 126.0 N 10.0 10.0 s N s N N - N N N N B ~ .
Totals 1,865.0 370 1,865.0 37.0 - - . 277.0 - 277.0 - - - 6.0 20 2.0 - 496.0 496.0 - 142.0 142.0 - 5.0 5.0 - 50 5.0 - 30 3.0 - 3.0 3.0 -
Percentage error 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Transportation
Reported  Reported
On On
DRTRS DRTRS Re-
By DOE By District Errors Tested Verified Exrors Reported Calculated
Regular - public schools 537.0 536.0 10 151.0 151.0 - Average mileage - regular including grade PK students 4.1 41
Regular - special ed 83.5 835 - 9.0 9.0 - Average mileage - regular excluding grade PK students 4.1 4.1
Aid in licu - nonpublic 240 24.0 - 8.0 8.0 - Average mileage - special ed with special needs 8.7 8.7
Special ed - special necds 69.5 69.5 - 12.0 12.0 - .
Totals 714.0 713.0 10 180.0 180.0 -
Percentage exror 0.00%



EXCESS SURPLUS CALCULATION

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Section 1

A. 2% Calculation of excess surplus

2010-11 Total general fund expenditures per the C.A.F.R., Exhibit C-1

Increased by:
Transfer to food service fund
Transfer from capital outlay to capital projects fund
Transfer from capital reserve to capital projects fund
Decreased by:
On-behalf TPAF pension and social security
Assets acquired under capital leases

Adjusted 2010-11 general fund expenditures [(B) + (B1's) - (B2's)]
2% of adjusted 2010-11 general fund expenditures [(B3) times .02]

Enter greater of (B4) or $250,000.00
Increased by: allowable adjustment*

Maximum unreserved/undesignated fund balance [(B5) + (K)]

Section 2

Total general fund - fund balances at 6-30-11 (per C.A.F.R.
budgetary comparison schedule C-1)
Decreased by:
Year-end encumbrances
Legally restricted - designated for subsequent year's
expenditures

Legally. restricted - excess surplus - designated for subsequent year's

expenditures**
Other restricted fund balances****

Assigned fund balance - unreserved - designated for subsequent year's

expenditures

Total unassigned fund balance [(C)-(C1)-(C2)-(C3)-(C4)-(C5)]

Section 3

Restricted fund balance - excess surplus*** [(U1) - (M)] if negative enter -0-

Recapitulation of excess surplus as of June 30, 2011

Reserved excess surplus - designated for subsequent
year's expenditures**
Reserved excess surplus*** [(E)]

Total [(C3) + (E)]

28,131,113.70

0.00
0.00
0.00

1,846,970.98
0.00

26,284,142.72

525,682.85

- 525,682.85

36,641.68

1,491,313.09
134,089.89
0.00

125,231.52
1,096.94

571,934.48

B)

(Bla)
(B1b)
(Blc)

(B2a)
(B2b)

(B3)
(B4)

(B5)
X)

©
(cn
(&)

(©3)
(&)

(C5)

562,324.53

658,960.26

96,635.73

125,231.52
96,635.73

221,867.25

*This adjustment line (as detailed below) is to be utilized for impact aid, sale and lease-back (refer to the Audit Program
Section II, Chapter 10), extraordinary aid, additional nonpublic school transportation aid, and unbudgeted TPAF wage freeze
grant funding. Refer to the Audit Program Section II, Chapter 10 for restrictions on the inclusion of extraordinary aid and

additional nonpublic school transportation aid.
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Detail of allowable adjustments

Impact aid $ 000 (H)
Sale and lease-back 0.00 (D

Extraordinary aid 31,236.00 (J1)
Additional nonpublic school transportation aid 5,405.68 (J2)
Unbudgeted TPAF wage freeze grant funding ' 0.00 (J3)
Total adjustments [(H) + (D) + (D) +(J2)+(J3)] $ 36,641.68 (K)

**This amount represents the June 30, 2010 excess surplus (C3 above) and must be included in the Audit Summary
Worksheet, Line 10025.

*** Amount must agree to the June 30, 2011 C.A.F.R. and the sum of the two lines must agree to Audit Summary Worksheet,
Line 10024.

**** Amount for other reserved fund balances must be detailed for each source. Use in the excess surplus calculation of any
legal reserve that is not state mandated or that is not legally imposed by an other type of government, such as the judicial branch
of government, must have departmental approval. District requests should be submitted to the Division of Finance prior to
September 30. :

Detail of other restricted fund balance

Statutory restrictions:

Approved unspent separate proposal $ 0.00
Capital outlay for a district with a capital outlay cap waiver 0.00
Sale/lease-back reserve 0.00
Capital reserve 1,096.94
Maintenance reserve : 0.00
Emergency reserve 4 0.00
Waiver offset reserve 0.00
Tuition reserve ' 0.00
Other state/government mandated reserve 0.00
[Other reserved fund balance not noted above]**** 0.00
Total other restricted fund balance ' $ 1,096.94 (C4)

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant #86
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP
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PENNSVILLE PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT
Business Administration '
30 Church Street
Pennsville, NJ 08070-2199

JOHN J. RECCHINTI

Business Administraror Telephone (856) 540-6200

FAX (856) 678-7565
or (856) 678-2620

November 30, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Pennsville Township School District
County of Salem :
Pennsville, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Pennsville Township School District (District) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data
presented in this report are accurate in all material respects and are reported in a manner designed to .
present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various funds and account groups
of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's
financial activities have been included.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical, and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart, and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic financial
statements and schedules, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of State
and Local Governments", and the state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB, "Smgle Audit Policy for
Remplents of Federal Grants State Grants, and State Aid Payments". Information related to this single
audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable
laws and regulatmns and ﬁndmgs and recommendatlons are 1ncluded in the smgle audlt section of thls

1.. Reporting Entity and Its Serv1ces

Pennsville Township School District i is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by
the GASB as established by GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are
included in this report. The Pennsville Township Board of Education and all its schools constitute the -
District's reporting entity. : :



1. Reportmg Entlty and Its Services (Concluded)

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 12.

These include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The
District completed the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an enrollment of 1,863 students, which is an increase
from the previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the
District over the last five years.

Average Daily Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2010-11 1,863 0.03%
2009-10 1,812 (4.03%)
2008-09 1,888 (3.23%)
2007-08 1,951 (5.06%)
2006-07 2,055 (1.72%)

2. Major Initiatives

The results of the Scholastic Aptitude Test for the Pennsville Memorial High School senior class of
2010-11 were: Critical Reading 478, Writing 452, and Math 497.

However, when the calculations include purely college preparatory students, that is those students who
took college preparatory English (honors, cp, and academic) and mathematics through geometry or
AIM 3, the overall results slightly improved.

On the state mandated High School Proficiency Assessment for eleventh grade, administered during
the school year 2010-11, 90.1% of the students were at or above the state standards in language arts and
73.5% in mathematics.

3. Internal Accounting Controls

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept
of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal awards and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to those programs. Internal control is also subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management.

As part of the District's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the

internal control, including that portion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

2.



4. Budgetary Controls

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length
budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final
budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of
fund balance at June 30, 2011.

5. Accounting System and Reports

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds and account groups. These funds and account groups are explained in
"Notes to the Financial Statements"”, Note 1.

6. Management’s Discussion and Analysis

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of a management’s discussion and analysis (MD & A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD & A and should be read in connection with it.
The District’s MD & A can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

7. Cash Management

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in "Notes to the
Financial Statements", Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect
Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.
The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New
Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8. Risk Management

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including, but not limited to, general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.

9. Other Information
A. Independent Audit

State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered
municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ball, Buckley and Seher, LLP, was selected by the
Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed
to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 as amended in 1996 and the related OMB
Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB's Letter 04-04. The auditor's report on the basic financial
statements and the combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the
single audit section of this report.



10. Acknowledgments

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Pennsville Township School Board
for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District
and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and
dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,
Dr. Mark T. Jones John J. Recchinti
Superintendent of Schools - Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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Ball
Buckley &
Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

UNQUALIFIED OPINIONS ON BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A t/ Elgmeugm
BY REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION AND SUPPLEMEN
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS AND OTHER
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY

Independent Auditor's Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Pennsville Township School District
County of Salem

Pennsville, New Jersey

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of
the Pennsville Township School District, County of Salem, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Board of Education of the
Pennsville Township School District's management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the
Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those
standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. I believe that my audit provides areasonable basis
for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School
District as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where
applicable, thereof for the fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated November 30,2011
on my consideration of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District's internal
control over financial reporting and on my tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe
the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
and should be considered in assessing the results of my audit.

-8-
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The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information on pages 10 through
17 and 46 through 63 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 1
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, 1 did
not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s basic financial statements.
The accompanying introductory section, and other supplementary information, such as, the combining and
individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules, and statistical tables are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
combining and individual fund financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04,
Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid respectively, and are not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Respectfully submitted,

BWUCHW

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 30, 2011
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR JUNE 30, 2011
(UNAUDITED)

It is a privilege to present to you the financial picture of the Pennsville Township School District (the
District). The discussion and analysis of the Pennsville Township School District’s financial
performance provides an overall review of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2011. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial
performance as a whole; readers should also review the transmittal letter, notes to the basic financial
statements, and financial statements to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial
performance.

Financial Highlights

Total revenues 0of $31,398,560.99 were comprised of general revenues in the amount 0f$27,013,618.80
or 86.03 percent and program specific revenues from charges for services, grants, and contrlbutlons in
the amount of $4,384,942.19 or 13.97 percent.

The District had $29,944,785.80 in expenses related to governmental activities; only $3,790,350.32 of
these expenses was offset by program specific charges for services, grants, or contributions. General
revenues (primarily property taxes and state aid) of $27,010,262.19 were adequate to provide for these
programs.

Net assets for enterprise fund types decreased in food service. The overall decrease resulted from operating
expenses of $611,521.29 exceeding operating revenues of $594,591.87.

Using This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of two distinct series of financial statements: the district-wide and the fund
~ financial statements.

The district-wide reports are designed to show the District’s overall economic activity. The Statement of
Net Assets and Statement of Activities provide information about the governmental-type and business-type
activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of District finances and a longer-term view
of those finances.

Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how
services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial
statements also look at the District’s most significant funds with all other nonmajor funds presented in total
in one column. In the case of the Pennsville Township School District, the General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects funds are the most significant funds.

-10-



Reporting The School District As A Whole (District-Wide)
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

The view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the questions, “Are we in a
better financial position this year than last?”” and “Why?” or “Why not?”. The statement of Net Assets and
the Statement of Activities provide the basis for answering these questions. The statements include all assets
and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses
regardless of when cash is received or paid. -

These two statements report the District’s net assets and any changes in those assets. The change in net
assets is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position of the
District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, including
factors not under the District’s control, such as the District’s property tax base, current property tax laws in
New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, required educational programs and other factors.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities are divided into two distinct kinds of activities:

Governmental Activities — Most of the District’s programs and services are reported here including
instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and extracurricular
activities.

Business-Type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
~all or a significant portion of the expenses of the goods or services provided. The District’s food service
operations, academies, and School-to-Work program are reported as a business activity.

Reporting The School District’s Most Significant Funds (Fund Financials)

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the District’s major funds. The District uses many
funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus
on the District’s most significant funds.

Governmental Funds

Most of the District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in future periods. These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all
other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.

Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources
that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements of the Governmental Funds.

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds have historically operated as an enterprise fund using the same basis of accounting as
business-type activities; therefore, these statements will essentially match the information provided in the
statements for the District as a whole.

The School District As A Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole.

-11



SI'06V°EIIT  §  08%9T9S 8€°STT'LSOT 80'bPL'SS6'T  §  66'169T 60°TSOCI6'T  §  SI9sse Jou [eI0],

(#9°598°LLI 1) LL'STIOp (Iv'166°L1Z°T) 6V LET°EILT) £8°698°91 (9€°€10°0€L°T) pa1oLISaIuf)
91'29996 00'0 91'799°796 T€'€86%610°T 000 TE€86°610°1 sasodund 1010
LY'€EL'SS 00°0 LY €EL°S8 18°L1L°88 00°0 18°L1L'88 s[qepuadxauoN

HEOEBOﬁGQ jusueuliad
¥6'980°1 000 ¥6'980°T 81'TYhT 000 81'THY'T spoafoad [ende)
yLO 000 vL'0 90'1 000 90'1 30118 192(]

’ 110J paoLnsay
1S°7L88ET°T €0°6£1°91 8P €€L°TTT 1 0T LYLLSST 71°928°ST 80'126°1€5T 193p Jo Ju ‘syasse [erdes ul paIsaAU]
RIEINN-REING
YSELG6'LSE'E 00'0 PSELO'LSEE €€°6¥S01Z°€ YT SESTI 60710°661°C SOII[IQEI] [2I0L,
SSE0E°L8LT 000 SS'E0EL8LT 8I'v17°680°C 000 81'¥1Z°680°C Jeak auo uey) alow ur angg
TTHOE SYE 000 TTHOE8PE T8 E1ETST 000 T8 EIETST Teaf duo urym ang
. nmﬁa_:n_m: Eg@u-mcod
LL'S9E°TTT 00'0 LL S9ETTT €€'120°698 YT SESTI 60'98¥°LS8 SSMI[IqRI] J3Y30 pUB JUSLIND
'SOI[IQEI]
LY ILYY 08'v97°9S T6'861°S 1V 1¥°€62°991°S €T'LTTYS 81°990°CI1°S $19sS® [210,
TTE0S'LEST €0'6€1°91 61°¥9€°12ST 8V SLY TYE'S 71'978°ST 9€'6¥9°91€‘E 10U ‘sjesse fende)
0S°096€€6T $  LL'STIOb €LPESC68 T €6'L18°€T8T § 11'10¥°8C 7891¥°s6L'T $ SJ9SSE JOYIO puE JudLN)
”mwumm<
ﬁmaofﬁ momam>_uo< mo_am>tb< ?aorr momw_>mao< mo_a_\w_ao/\
OQ%H-mmoEmzm _SEOEEQ\»OO oa\ﬁyﬁ-mmocmmsm Ewcoﬁﬁao\woo
0102 1102
mu@mm< HQZ

12198l

-12-



8€°L9V°TTIT 66'SSE0P 6€111°280°C 06'€STTH8 $ (18°7LSET) 1L°978°SS8 $
TE'LLEY88°0E 69'975°€8S £9'058°00£°0€ 60°L0€°955°0€ 67125119 08'S8L'v76°6C
69°975°€8S 69'95°€8S 00°0 6T°1TS°119 6T 1TS°119 000
$9°T8¥°102 00°0 $9°Z8¥°10C S0'98S°€1T 000 $0'985°€1T
TL'TITTY 000 TL'TITT9 LS'869°6€ 000 LS'869°6€
SS'6¥L ‘801 000 SS'6vL‘801 L8°LOET 00°0 L8'LOET
0L'86%'VL1°9 000 0L'86VVLT‘9 91¥15°861°9 00°0 91'¥15°861°9
8T E81°L61°1 000 8T€8T1°L6IT LT 86V V611 000 LT86Y 611
80°06L°L9S‘T 000 80°06L°L9S‘T 6€'TSO°TEL'T 00°0 6€'TSOTELT
LS'$S0°92C°1 000 LS'$S0°9ZT°1 88°80¥°C9C°1 000 88°'80%°C9C°1
08'6L1°22T°1 000 08°6L1°TCT 1 SE9LY6LTT 00°0 SE9LY6LT]
0S°99€‘vhb e 00°0 0S°99€P¥y e 1€'885480°C 000 1€'885980°C
6E°L16YYE’] 000 6€L16YPET 0T'€78768 00°0 0T €78°768
6E VIV ISLTT 000 6E VI ISLTI SL'TE8°THOECT 000 SLTE8THOET
0L'¥¥8°900°€€ 89'788°€79 20°796°T8E°TE 66'09586€°T€ 81'8Y6°L6S 15°219°008°0€
1S ST¥$90°1 000 1S°STH490°1 9€'60¥°901°1 19'96¢€°¢ SLTSOE01°T
00'69L°102 00'0 00'69L°10T 00°€59°C12 000 00°€S9°CIT
SEIIIPI‘6 000 SE919°IPI‘6 P Y6v°0L1 S 000 2ATAVAR
00°69%°9TT L1 000 00'69¥°9ZZ L1 00'290°PZS LT 00°0 00'290¢TS L1
TSY8LILET Y 86°CS8°LET ¥S'1€6'666°€ 9S 19L°1LT E £1°088°CHC €1°'188°820°C
TE06LVET T 0L'620°98¢ T9'09L°8YL €9°081°CIT°1 PLTILISE 68'89%°19L $

[e10L SONIANDY SONIAIY e10L. SANIAIDY SOANIANOY

odA ] -ssauisng [BIUSWIUISA0D) ad£ 1 -ssauisng [PIUSWIUISAOD)
0102 1102
$)assy JAN ui1 saSuey)

TolqeL

$19SS® JOU U] (9SBAI0SP) S5BAIOU]

sosuadxa [e10],

uonesado asudisjug
uoneiverdop pajesojjeun)

991AI8S 199(]

sjooyos [e1oadg
S)1Jouaq pejeoo|eun)
uonepodsuen jidng

soueuLUIEW puE suoleiado jue[d
SOOIAISS SSAUISNG PUB [BISUID)

SOOIAIQS UOTJRNSIUIWPE [00YDS
SOOIAISS Paje[al UOHIONIISUI PUB JUSPNIS

SONUAAAI [B10],

uoning
uolonIsuy

:sosuadxs weidoid

BYO
90IAI9S 199(]

SIUSWS[IIUS pUE SjuRID
soxe) Auadoig
ISONUSAJI [RISUID)

suonnginuod pue syuesd uneredo

:$19sSE J0U Ul saSueYd JY) SMOYS Z 9[qBL

$901A19$ Joj sad1ey)
1sonuaAdl weidoid

|

on

—
1



LY'8S1°TSSST  §

£9°058°00€°0€  $

8y SEVPSI9T  §

08'S8Lvv6'6T § TBIOL

$9°Z8+°102 $9'Z8+° 10T S0'98S°€1T S0'98S°€1T uonerdaIdap pajedof[eun)
(82'20¥°€2) TLTITT9 (€v'60t°TE) LS'869°6€ 991A13S 199
SS6YL801 SS'6¥L801 L8'LOET L8'LOET sfooyos [eroads
1408 €Y'y 0L'86V"¥L19 80'81€TLT Y 91'¥15°861°9 $}JoUdq Pajedo[[eu()
8T €SI°L6T°T 8T E€8I°L61T LT 86V V61T LT 86V P61°T uoryeptodsuen [1dng
80°06L°L9S°C 80°06L°L9S°T 6€TS0TELT 6€TSOTELT soueuSjUTEwW pue suone1ado juelq
LS'SS09TT1 LS'SS0°9CT°1 88'80¥°29C°1 88'80¥°79T‘1 SOOIAISS SSAUISN( pUB [ISUD)
08°6L1°TTT1 08'6L1°T2T°1 SEOLY6LT T SEILY 6LT T S30IAISS UOTJENSIUTWIPE [00YDS
97'988°L86°C 0S'99€Pt°c €5°L6¥°906°T 1€885480°¢C SOOIAISS PRJe[aI UONONISUT PUE JUSPNIS
6€°S9L°SE6 6 LI6VYE T 02'€78V68 02 €78768 uonny,
9L°L80°G88°0T $  6EPIVISLTI §  6T9ILBTHIT §  SLIESTHOET $ uonoNISuJ
SAVTAIIS moom?ﬁom SAOTAIRS SOOTAISS
Jo HmoU 19N mo 180D EPO,H JO 180D 1IN JO 180D [e10],

010C 1I0e

SANIANIY [BIUITIUIIA0L)

-14-

£9lqeL

"STUSWISINUS 9)B}S PAIOLISAIUN PUB SNUIAI

xe) AQ paptoddns s991AISS 953U} JO 1500 A} SIYIUSPI T ‘ST JRY], 'SIOIAISS JO IS0 JOU Y} PUR ISOO [B)0} AU} ‘SINIATIOR [BIUSWUIIA0ST 10]
‘smoys ¢ J[qe], ‘syurI3 SunISSIJO pue SIOIAISS IS 0] So3IRYD 9U) puR $391AIdS WeIFoId JO 1500 oY} SMOYS SIMIANOY JO JUSWR)S oY I,

1107 TeaA [eOS1J 10J SONIATIOR [RJUSWUIIAOS 0] SaNUASI JO Judoiad g6 /¢ dn opew soxe) A1xedoid

‘quooiad (€' ] 9IoM SIOIAISS

pareaI-juapnis pue jusdiad (2 (07 2Iom sygouaq sokojdwy sosuadxs ueidoid rejuswruidnod Jo usoiad 9¢ ¢ sastdurod uononnsuy

"JQap papuoq s,1oMsIJ Ay Jo Juswked o) 10J paster sem (0 €591 Z$ JO Junowe ay)
ur AA9] Xe1' Y "10IISI(T 9y} Jo sasuadxa [euonerado ayp 103 010¢ [V ur s19j04 oyy 4q pasoidde sem (00°Z90¢ZS L 1$ JO Junowe oy} ur AA9] xe) YT,

SINIAIOY [B)UIUILIIA0Y)



The dependence ﬁpon general revenues for governmental activities is apparent. The community as a whole
1s, by far, the primary support for Pennsville Township School District students.

Business-Type Activities

Business-type activities include the food service operation. This program had program revenues of
$594,591.87 and expenses of $611,521.29 for fiscal year 2011. Over 40.85 percent of those program
revenues were from grants and contributions in the form of the federal and state lunch programs for the
reimbursable lunch program. Participation governs the amount of commodity food received by the District.

The District’s Funds

The District’s governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds had total revenues of $29,415,319.20 and expenditures of $30,105,673.59. The tax
revenues for payment of the principal and interest flowed to the District’s debt service fund.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on a basis of cash recelpts disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted
fund is the General Fund.

During the course of fiscal 2011, the District amended its general fund budget as needed. The District uses
a school-based budgeting system designed to tightly control total school budgets, but provide flexibility for
location management. Building principals prepare a budget request based on course requirements and
student enrollment projections.

For the General Fund, the final budget basis revenue was $27,638,041.41 representing a $2,227,952.41
increase from the original budget estimates of $25,410,089.00. The final budget reflected a 3.50 percent
increase over the original budgeted amount. For the General Fund, the final budget basis expenditures were
$28,131,113.70 representing a 7.75 percent increase of $2,023,858.70 more than the original budget.
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For The Future

A major concern for the Pennsville Township School District is the passing of a bond referendum, which
will allow the District to make renovations to its aging facilities. The School District’s other major source
of revenue is State Aid which has been flat funded for the past few years. These two factors have created
financial challenges for the school district.

Contacting The School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general -
overview of the School District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact John J. Recchinti,
School Business Administrator at Pennsville Township School District, 30 Church Street, Pennsville, NJ
08070.
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EXHIBIT A-1

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS: _
Cash and cash equivalents $ 538,35052 $ 4,870.57 $ 543,221.09
Receivables, net 842,830.43 13,371.31 856,201.74
Inventory 0.00 10,159.23 - 10,159.23
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 414,234.87 0.00 414,234.87
Capital reserve account - cash 1.00 0.00 1.00
Capital assets, net 3,316,649.36 25,826.12 3,342,475.48
Total assets 5,112,066.18 54,227.23 5,166,293.41
LIABILITIES:
Accrued interest 16,256.17 0.00 16,256.17
Accounts payable 114,506.08 11,535.24 126,041.32
Contracts payable 575,660.00 0.00 575,660.00
Payable to state government 8,607.80 0.00 8,607.80
Deferred revenue 142,456.04 ©0.00 142,456.04
Noncurrent liabilities: '
Due within one year 252,313.82 0.00 252,313.82
Due beyond one year 2,089,214.18 0.00 2,089,214.18
Total liabilities 3,199,014.09 11,535.24 3,210,549.33
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt 2,531,921.08 25,826.12 2,557,747.20
Restricted for:
Capital projects 2,442.18 0.00 2,442.18
Debt service 1.06 0.00 1.06
Permanent endowment - nonexpendable 88,717.81 0.00 88,717.81
Other purposes 1,019,983.32 0.00 1,019,983.32
Unrestricted (1,730,013.36) - 16,865.87 (1,713,147.49)
Total netassets $ 1,913,052.09 §$ 42,691.99 § 1,955,744.08

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy
Tuition
Transportation
Interest earned on capital reserve funds
Miscellaneous
Total local sources
State sources
Federal sources
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
Regular instruction
Special education instruction
Other special instruction
Other instruction

Support services and undistributed costs:
Tuition
Student and instruction related services
School administrative services
General and business administrative services
Plant operations and maintenance
Pupil transportation
Unallocated benefits

Special schools

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other charges

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance - July 1

Fund balance - June 30

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

EXHIBIT B-2

June 30, 2011
Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Permanent Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 17,524,062.00 § 000 $ 000 $ 212,653.00 $ 000 $ 17,736,715.00
120,125.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 120,125.15
57,110.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 57,110.00
10.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 .
301,698.84 28,756.10 0.00 0.00 284.34 330,739.28
18,003,005.99 28,756.10 0.00 212,653.00 284.34 18,244,699.43
9,711,523.66 130,333.08 255,526.00 72,108.00 0.00 10,169,490.74
50,415.76 950,713.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,001,129.03
27,764,945.41 1,109,802.45 255,526.00 284,761.00 284.34 29,415,319.20
8,321,866.65 852,486.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,174,353.22
2,447,377.91 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,447,377.91
193,616.78 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 193,616.78
439,222.71 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 439,222.71
894,823.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 894,823.20
2,906,197.53 178,090.78 0.00 0.00 300.00 3,084,588.31
1,279,476.35 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,279,476.35
1,262,408.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,262,408.88
2,732,052.39 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,732,052.39
1,194,498.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,194,498.27
6,119,289.06 79,225.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,198,514.16
2,307.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,307.87
0.00 0.00 0.00 243,850.01 0.00 243,850.01
0.00 0.00 0.00 40,910.67 0.00 40,910.67
337,976.10 0.00 579,696.76 0.00 0.00 917,672.86
28,131,113.70 1,109,802.45 579,696.76 284,760.68 300.00 30,105,673.59
(366,168.29) 0.00 (324,170.76) 0.32 (15.66) (690,354.39)
0.00 0.00 325,516.00 0.00 0.00 325,516.00
(325,516.00) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (325,516.00)
(325,516.00) 0.00 325,516.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(691,684.29) 0.00 1,345.24 0.32 (15.66) (690,354.39)
1,463,715.38 0.00 0.00 0.74 88,733.47 1,552,449.59
$ 772,031.09 $ 0.00 § 1,34524  $ 1.06 $ 8871781 § 862,095.20
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EXHIBIT B-3

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balances - governmental funds
(from B-2) ‘ 3 (690,354.39)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds
as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense $ (213,586.05)

Capital outlays 674,967.93

Internal service capital outlays ‘ (21,380.70)

Disposals (81,913.36)

Adjustments 415,816.65 773,904.47

Expenditures net of charges for services in the
statement of activities which do not provide current
financial resources and are not reported as
expenditures in the funds. (26,792.24)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets
and is not reported in the statement of activities. :
Bond principal 243,850.01

Capital lease 270,052.42
Compensated absences 280,177.34

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term
debt in the statement of activities is accrued,
regardless of when due. In the governmental funds,
interest is reported when due. The accrued interest
is an addition in the reconciliation. - 4,989.10

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 855,826.71
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011

Business -Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

EXHIBIT B-4

Governmental
Activities

Food Service

Internal
Service Fund

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 487057 $ 92,350.95
Accounts receivable ' 13,371.31 0.00
Inventories 10,159.23 0.00
Total current assets 28,401.11 92,350.95
Noncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery, and equipment 430,281.24 169,925.21
Less: accumulated depreciation (404,455.12) (93,004.05)
Total noncurrent assets 25,826.12 76,921.16
Total assets  $ 5422723 $ 16927211
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable ‘ $ - 11,53524  § 259.25
Total current liabilities 11,535.24 259.25
Total liabilities 11,535.24 259.25
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related ,
debt 25,826.12 76,921.16
Unrestricted 16,865.87 92,091.70
Total net assets 42.691.99 169,012.86
Total liabilities and net assets  $ 5422723 $ 169,272.11
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EXHIBIT B-5
PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011
Business -Type Governmental
Activities - Activities
Enterprise Funds Internal

Food Service Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs:
School lunch program
School breakfast program ,
Daily sales non-reimbursable programs
Special functions
Program fees
Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales
Salaries and employee benefits
Purchased professional/technical services
Other purchased services
General supplies
Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (Expenses):
State sources:
State school lunch program
Federal sources:
National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
Food distribution program
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Net income (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfer in - fixed assets redistributed from general fund
Gain or (loss) on disposal of fixed assets

Change in net assets
Total net assets - beginning

Total net assets - ending -24-

217,583.60 § 0.00
1,842.40 0.00
123,629.95 0.00
8,655.79 0.00
0.00 1761,468.89
351,711.74 761,468.89
255,517.61 0.00
292,379.72 557,369.21
0.00 6,000.00
0.00 152,475.65
22,068.70 37,662.35
3,555.26 13,595.95
38,000.00 34,753.92
611,521.29 801,857.08
(259,809.55) (40,388.19)
6,557.23 0.00
201,778.26 0.00
6,590.72 0.00
27,953.92 0.00
242,880.13 0.00
(16,929.42) (40,388.19)
2,901.50 0.00
455.11 0.00
(13,572.81) (40,388.19)
56,264.80 209,401.05
42,691.99 § 169,012.86




PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
State sources
Federal sources
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year
Balances - end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating
activities:

Depreciation and net amortization
Food distribution program
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in inventories
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities
-25-

Business -Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

EXHIBIT B-6

Governmental
Activities

Food Service

Internal
Service Fund

$ 391,205.05

$ 761,468.89

(292,379.72) (557,369.21)
(284,275.78) (239,038.41)
(185,450.45) (34,938.73)
6,957.84 0.00
211,068.27 0.00
218,026.11 0.00
(9,885.74) (21,380.70)
(9,885.74) (21,380.70)
22,689.92 (56,319.43)
(17,819.35) 148,670.38
$ 487057 $ 92,350.95

$  (259,809.55)

$ (40,388.19)

3,555.26 13,595.95
27,953.92 0.00
31,314.68 0.00
11,535.24 (8,146.49)
74,359.10 5,449.46

$  (185450.45)

$ (34,938.73)




EXHIBIT B-7

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011
Unemployment
Compensation Agency
Trust Fund Fund
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,293.54 '$ 293,079.58
Total assets 6,293.54 $ 293,079.58
LIABILITIES:
Interfund accounts payable $ 000 $ 16.56
Payroll deductions and withholdings 3,436.99 27,231.85
Accrued salaries and wages ' 0.00 106,452.97
Due to student groups 0.00 159,378.20
Total liabilities 3,436.99 § 293,079.58
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for unemployment claims
and other purposes - $ 2.856.55
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EXHIBIT B-8

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011
Unemployment
Compensation
Trust Fund Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Deduction from employees' salaries $ 36,731.70 $ 36,731.70
Interest earned ' 446.32 446.32
Total operating revenues 37,178.02 37,178.02
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Quarterly contributions_ reports 10,656.03 10,656.03
Unemployment claims \ 270,016.44 270,016.44
Penalty 279.15 ' 279.15
‘ Total operating expenses 280,951.62 280,951.62
Operating income (loss) (243,773.60) (243,773.60)
Net assets - beginning of year 246,630.15 246,630.15
Net assets - end of year $ 2,856.55 $ 2,856.55
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of Pennsville Township School District
(District) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the Board's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Pennsville Township School District is a Type II district located in the County of Salem, State of
New Jersey. As a Type II district, the District functions independently through a Board of Education.
The Board is comprised of 9 members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the District is to
educate students in grades K - 12. The District had an approximate enrollment at June 30, 2011 of
2,038 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name), the District holds
the corporate power of the organization, the District appoints a voting majority of the organization's
board, the District is able to impose its will on the organization, the organization has the potential to
impose a financial benefit/burden on the District, and there is a fiscal dependency by the organization
on the District.

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the District has no component units.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain
legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns
in the fund financial statements.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Fund Accounting

The accounts of the District are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting to
ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the resources available. The principles of fund
accounting require that resources be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds or
account groups in accordance with activities or objectives specified for the resources. The operations
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets,
liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources
are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to
be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. Funds are classified into three
categories: governmental, proprletary, and fiduciary. Each category, in turn is divided into separate
“fund types™ as follows: _

Governmental Funds

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the District. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified
in the capital outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the District includes budgeted capital
outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles, as they pertain to governmental entities,
state that the general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey aid,
district taxes, and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of
or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings, and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to current expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from state and federal government (other than major capital projects, debt service, or the
enterprise funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified

purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for all financial resources to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds).

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction, and improvement programs.

Permanent Fund - The permanent fund is used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent
that only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s
program. '
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. Fund Accounting (Concluded)
Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of net income, financial position, and
cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in
the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of the District.

Enterprise Funds - The enterprise funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the District is that the
costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
- students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the
District has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or
other purposes.

The District's enterprise funds are comprised of the food service fund.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or "capital maintenance" measurement
focus. This means that all assets and all liabilities, whether current or noncurrent, associated with their
activity are included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund equity (net total assets) is segregated
into contributed capital and unreserved retained earnings, if applicable. Proprietary fund type operating
statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustive fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against
their operations. Accumulated depreciation is reported on proprietary fund balance sheets.
Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Food service fund:
Machinery and equipment - 15 years

Internal Service Fund - The Internal Service Fund has been established to account for the county wide
programs administrator fees for the school to careers and school to work programs that are funded by
every high school district that participates in the county.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds - The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District
in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or
other funds.

Expendable Trust Fund - An expendable trust fund is accounted for in essentially the same
manner as the governmental fund types, using the same measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Expendable trust funds account for assets where both the principal and interest may
be spent. Expendable trust funds include the unemployment compensation insurance fund.

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the District holds on behalf

of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement
of results of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student activities funds.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when the are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenue to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, tuition, state equalizations monies, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received
by the government.

E. Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue, and
debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and are voted upon at the
annual school election on the third Tuesday in April. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis
of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control
is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most
specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made by school board resolution at any time during the
fiscal year. The Board of Education did not make any material supplemental budgetary appropriations
during the fiscal year.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated revenue
recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as reservations of fund balances at fiscal
year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed
contracts for goods and services. :

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has received advances are reflected
in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the
beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the
outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

G. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased at stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks
(both state and national banks), and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public
depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily
balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

H. Tuition Receivable

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

I. Tuition Payable

Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2010-11 and 2009-10 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been determined.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
J. Inventories and Prepaid Expenses '

Inventories and prepaid expenses, which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase.

Inventories in the proprietary funds are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in-
first-out (FIFO) method. Prepaid expenses in the enterprise fund represent payments made to vendors
for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011.

K. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

Short-term interfund receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for
goods and services rendered to/from a particular fund in the District and that are due within one year.

L. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired within an original cost of $2,000.00 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of
the date received. Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Buildings - 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment - 5-10 years
Improvements - 10-20 years

M. Accrued Salaries and Wages

Certain District employees, who provide services to the District over the ten-month academic year,
have the option to have their salaries evenly disbursed during the entire twelve-month year. New
Jersey statutes require that these earned but undisbursed amounts be retained in a separate bank
account. As of June 30, 2011, the amount earned by these employees but not disbursed was
$106,452.97.

N. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services
already rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the
District and its employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated
absences that relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the
control of the District and its employees, are recorded for in the period in which such services are
rendered or in which such events take place.

O. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned.
P. Long-Term Debt Obligations

Long-term debt is recorded on the district-wide statement as due within one year and due beyond one
year.

-33-



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q. Fund Equity

Contributed capital represents the amount of fund capital contributed to the proprietary funds from
other funds. Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not available for appropriation for
expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated fund balances represent plans
for future use of financial resources.

R. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated deprecation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net
assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the
enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.

The School District applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purchases for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

S. Fund Balance

. The School District reports fund balance in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily
on the extent to which the School District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in those funds can be spent. The School District’s classifications, and policies for
determining such classifications, are as follows:

Nonspendable

The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not
in spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as
inventories and prepaid amounts.

Restricted

The restricted fund balance classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes.
Such restrictions, or constraints, are placed on the use of resources either by being (1) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2)
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the School District’s highest level of decision-
making authority, which, for the School District, is the Board of Education. Such formal action consists
of an affirmative vote by the Board of Education, memorialized by the adoption of a resolution. Once
committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board of Education removes, or
changes, the specified use by taking the same type of action (resolution) it employed to previously
commit those amounts.

Assigned

The assigned fund balance classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. /ntent is expressed by
the Board of Education. 34-



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concluded)
S. Fund Balance (Concluded)
Unassigned

The unassigned fund balance classification is the residual classification for the general fund. This
classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund is the
only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts restricted, committed, or assigned to
those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balances
- are available, it is the policy of the School District to spend restricted fund balance first. Moreover,
when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications can be used, it is the policy of the School District to spend fund balances, if appropriate,

in the following order: commltted assigned, then unassigned.

T. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certainreported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

U. Component Units

GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, provides guidance that all entities associated
with a primary government are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the
financial reporting entity. A primary government is financially accountable not only for the
organizations that make up its legal entity, but also for legally separate organizations that meet the
criteria established by GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. Based on the aforementioned criteria, the School
District has no component units.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the School District’s deposits might
notbe recovered. Although the School District does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit
risk, N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units shall deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
(GUDPA). Under the Act, the first $250,000.00 of governmental deposits in each insured depository
is protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). Public funds owned by the School
District in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does not
protect intermingled trust funds such as salary withholdings, athletic and student activity funds, or funds
that may pass to the School District relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are
shown as uninsured and uncollateralized in the schedule below.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Concluded)

As of June 30, 201 1, the District's bank balances of $2,218,412.14 were exposed to Acustodial credit risk
as follows: :

Insurance ©$ 250,000.00

Uninsured and collateralized with securities held by

pledging financial institutions 1.968.412.14
$ 2.218.412.14
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 5 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT (Concluded)
A. Bonds Payable

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the District through referendums.
All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by
the District are general obligation bonds.

On August 18, 1993, the School District issued $3,023,759.00 in general obligation bonds at 5.288%
for a small project. The final maturity of the bonds is 2013. Also on August 18, 1993, the School
District issued $1,007,920.00 in general obligation bonds at 1.5% for a safe program The final
maturity of the bonds is 2013.

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year ending June 30,
2012 $ 252,313.82 § 29,801.58 $ 282,115.40
2013 261,423.77 18,227.82 279,651.59
2014 v 270.990.69 6.160.26 277.150.95

$ 78472828 $ 54.189.66 § 838.917.94

At June 30, 2011, bonds payable consisted of the following individual issues:

Interest
Purpose Maturities Rate Balance
Small project loan 7/15/10-7/15/13 5.288% $ 625,583.05
Safe program 7/15/10-7/15/13 1.500% 159.145.23

$ 784.728.28
B. Bonds Authorized But Not Issued
As of June 30, 2011, the District had no authorized but not issued bonds.
C. Capital Leases

As of June 30, 2011, the District had paid off in 2010-11 a capital lease outstanding for the installation
of a photovoltaic electric power generating system with an original amount of $838,000.00.

D. Temporary Notes Payable
As of June 30, 2011, the District had no temporary notes payable.
E. Interest Expense

No interest expense was capitalized during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. Interest expense
totaling $40,910.67 was paid by the debt service fund for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

F. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences will be paid from the fund from which the employees’ salaries are paid.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS
Description of Plans

Substantially all of the School District’s employees participate in one of the following pension plans
which have been established by state statute, and are administered by the New Jersey Division of
Pensions and Benefits (Division): the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP).
The TPAF and PERS are defined benefit pension plans while the DCRP is a defined contribution
pension plan. Each plan has a Board of Trustees that is primarily responsible for its administration.
The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That
report may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, Post
Office Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is a cost-sharing contributory defined benefit pension plan
which was established on January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66. The TPAF
provides retirement, death and disability, and medical benefits to qualified members. Vesting and
benefit provisions are established by N.J.S.A. 18A.:66.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual
covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions
in rates based on the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, statute also
requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.

Under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on-behalf of the
School District and all other related non-contributing employers. No normal or accrued liability
contribution by the School District has been required over the several preceding fiscal years.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which was established on January 1, 1955. The PERS provides retirement, death and disability,
and medical benefits to certain qualified members. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by
N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43:3B.

The contribution requirements of plan members are determined by state statute. In accordance with
Chapter 92 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007, plan members were required to contribute 5.5% of their annual
covered salary. The State Treasurer has the right under the current law to make temporary reductions
in rates based on'the existence of surplus pension assets in the retirement system; however, statute also
requires the return to the normal rate when such surplus pension assets no longer exists.

The School District is billed annually for its normal contribution plus any accrued liability.

The School District’s contributions to the PERS, equal to the required contribution for each fiscal year,
were as follows:

Normal Accrued Total Paid By
Fiscal Year Contribution Liability Liability District
2011 $ 146,416.000 $ 194,912.00 $ 341,328.00 $ 341,328.00
2010 131,864.00 128,662.00 260,526.00 260,526.00
2009 Not Available

-40-



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 6 - PENSION PLANS (Concluded)
Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) Payment Deferral

On March 17, 2009, P.L. 2009, c. 19 (S-21) was signed into legislation and provided regular and
vocational school districts the option of deferring fifty percent (50%) of the school district’s 2008-09
regular PERS pension liability. School districts that elected to defer the pension liability are required
to begin repaying the deferred amount over fifteen (15) years, starting in April of 2012. The amount
to be paid will fluctuate based on the pension system investment earnings on the unfunded liability.
At any time, however, upon requesting a pay off amount from the Division of Pensions and Benefits,
a school district may pay off the deferred amount. The deferral of the aforementioned PERS payment
is only an option for the 2008-09 fiscal year. Commencing in fiscal year 2010 and beyond, the full
annual PERS pension liability will be required to be budgeted and paid.

The School District adopted a resolution electing to defer fifty percent (50%) of the April 2009
payment, equaling a total deferral of $97,567.00. The following is the 2011-12 payment of the PERS
deferral, based on the billing received to date. N.J.S.A. 43:15A-24b requires the use of “regular
interest” when the actuary calculates the amortization of the unfunded accrued liability of the pension
system, which is set by the State Treasurer (N J.S.A. 43:15A-6n).

Total
Deferral Projected
Payment Interest Payment
Year ending June 30,
2012 $ 4,246.00 $ 9,699.00 $ 13,945.00

NOTE 7 - POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

- P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c. 6 required TPAF and PERS, respectively, to fund post-retirement
medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service
or on a disability retirement. P.L. 2207, c. 103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-
retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and PERS. It created separate funds outside of the
pension plans for the funding and repayment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired State
employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288 retirees eligible
for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the
State in accordance with P.L. 1994, c. 62. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from
a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, c. 126, which provides free health
benefits to member of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education
or county college with 25 years of service. The State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits
for 14,050 eligible retired members in fiscal year 2010. '

NOTE 8 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the School District has recognized as revenues and expenditures
on-behalf payments made by the "State for normal costs and post-retirement costs related to TPAF. The

amounts recognized as revenues and expenditures for normal costs and post-retirement costs were
$40,933.00 and $869,429.00, respectively.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 9 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as directed by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for
Compensated Absences”. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already
rendered and not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee
is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's
personnel polices. In the event of termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation
at their current rate of pay. Payment for accumulated sick days is available to employees only when
they reach the statutory retirement requirements and have 10 years of service with the School District.
Accumulated sick days are paid at one day's salary for every four days of accumulated sick days up to
a total of $30,000.00 and $20,000.00 maximum for certified employees and non-certified employees,
respectively.

In the district-wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than
one year should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due
in more than one year.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the proprietary fund types is recorded within those
funds as the benefits accrue to employees. As of June 30, 2011, no liability existed for compensated -
absences in the proprietary fund types.

NOTE 10 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed
below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under
the plans are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable
emergency. The plan administrators are as follows:

The Legend Group Financial Services
MetLife
- Lincoln Investments
Putnam Investments
Equitable
Valic

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability, and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical
Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. '



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Concluded)

The District participates in the Gloucester, Cumberland, Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund
(GCSSDIJIF), public entity risk pool. Coverage under this joint plan offers workers' compensation,
boiler and machinery, automobile liability, general liability, property, crime and school board legal
liability coverage. The District is assessed for the contributions for those funds and is responsible for
any reserve deficiencies. No contingency provision has been made in these financial statements as no
deficiencies occurred as of June 30, 2011 for the joint insurance pool. As of December 31, 2010, the
fund had a projected surplus of $1,671,064.00 of which the District has a share in the amount of
$150,954.00.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to funds its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts
due to the State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid, and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust
fund for the current and previous two years:

District Employee Amount Ending
Fiscal Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2010-2011 $ 44632 $ 36,731.70 $ 280,951.62 $ 2,856.55
2009-2010 $ 1,150.98 $ 39,974.32 $ 97,916.13 $ 246,630.15
2008-2009 $ 3,964.02 $ 40,514.25 $ 33,328.92 $ 303,420.98

NOTE 12 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The District had the following interfund balances at June 30, 2011:

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable

General fund:

Special revenue fund $ 320,084.08 $ -

Agency fund 16.56 -
Special revenue fund:

General fund - . 320,084.08
Agency fund:

General fund -. 16.56

$ 320.100.64 § 320.100.64

NOTE 13 - FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED
The School District has classified its fund balances with the following hierarchy:

Nonspendable
As of June 30, 2011, the balance in the permanent fund account is $88,706.56.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 13 - FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED (Concluded)
Spendable

The School District has classified the spendable fund balances as Restricted, Assigned, and Unassigned and
considered each to have been spent when expenditures are incurred. The School District currently has no
funds classified as Committed.

Restricted

Capital reserve - As of June 30, 2011, the balance in the capital reserve account is $1,096.94
which is restricted for future capital outlay expenditures for capital projects in the School
District’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan.

Excess surplus - In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the designation of
restricted fund balance - excess surplus is the result of a required calculation pursuant to the
New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to restrict general fund balance at the fiscal year end
of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance
in their subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance as of June 30, 2011 is
$221,867.25. Of this, $125,231.52 of excess fund balance, which was generated during
2009-10, has been restricted and designated for utilization in the 2011-12 budget.

Capital project fund - On August 23, 2010, the School District’s Board adopted a resolution
authorizing the roof replacement of Penn Beach School. As of June 30, 2011, the restricted
fund balance amount was $1,345.24.

Other purposes - The spendable portion of the permanent fund was $11.25 as of June 30,
2011.

Assigned

Designated by the Board of Education for subsequeht year’s expenditures - The School
District has appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2012 $571,934.48 of general fund balance at June 30, 2011.

Other purposes - As of June 30, 2011, the School District had $134,089.89 of

encumbrances outstanding for purchase orders and contracts signed by the School
District, but not completed, as of the close of the fiscal year.

Unassigned
This the remainder of the School District’s equity in the governmental fund types. The

total balance is ($156,956.41) as of June 30, 2011. This is comprised of ($156,957.47)
in the general fund and $1.06 in the debt service fund.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
‘ JUNE 30, 2011 ‘

NOTE 14 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The District has a deficit fund balance of $156,957.47 in the General Fund as of June 30, 2011 as reported
in the fund statements (modified accrual basis). N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state
school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the delayed
one or more June state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget
year. The bill provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget
year. For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires the recognition (revenue,
expenditure, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other
government recognizes a liability. Since the State is recording the June state aid payments in the
subsequent fiscal year, the school district can not recognize the June state aid payments on the GAAP
financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing differences of
recording the June state aid payments, the general and special revenue fund balance deficit does not alone
indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties.

Pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2 any negative unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is
reported as a direct result from a delay in the June payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is
not considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of corrective action. The
District’s deficit in the GAAP funds statements of ($156,957.47) is equal to the last two state aid

‘payments. :

NOTE 15 - CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

- Funds placed in the Capital Reserve Account are restricted to capital outlay expenditures and transfers
of such funds for other uses are prohibited pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-8.2. Funds withdrawn from
the account must be included in the annual budget certified for taxes as a revenue labeled "withdrawal
from capital reserve". Increases in the account from sources other than investment income cannot
exceed the amount appropriated in the annual budget certified for taxes as an increase in the Capital
Reserve Account.

The 2009-10 budget budgeted $10.00 as revenue to the capital reserve account to be utilized in the
capital projects fund; leaving a balance of $1,096.94 in the capital reserve account as of June 30, 2011.
NOTE 16 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND TRANSFER

- The School District transferred funds from the general fund into the capital projects fund in April 2011.
These funds were transferred out the existing general fund budget. The transfer of $325,516.00 was
for the School’s share of the roof replacement of Penn Beach School project. The transfer is
appropriately reported as an operating transfer in/out on Exhibit B-2.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events were evaluated through November 30, 2011, the date which the ﬁnanéial statements
were available to be issued.
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Notes To The Required Supplementdiy Information



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Note To Requiréd Supplementary Information
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note A - Explanation of differences between budgetary

inflows and outflows and GAAP revenues and expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP
in that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures,
and the related revenue is recognized

State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes,
not recognized for GAAP statements:
2009-10
2010-11

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds

Uses/outflows of resources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences - budget to GAAP: .
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed
for budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are
received for financial reporting purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,

expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental
funds

-63-

General
Fund

EXHIBIT C-3

Special
Revenue
Fund

$ 27,638,041.41

$ 1,137,562.79

0.00 (27,760.34)

846,186.00 0.00
(719,282.00) 0.00

$ 27,764,94541 $ 1,109,802.45
$ 28,131,113.70 $ 1,137,562.79
0.00 (27,760.34)

$ 28,131,113.70 $ 1,109,802.45




Other Supplementmy Information



PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Special Revenue Fund
Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended Jume 30, 2011

EXHIBIT E-1

Federal State Local Total
REVENUES:
State sources 0.00 $ 130,333.08 0.00 130,333.08
Federal sources 978,473.61 0.00 0.00 978,473.61
Local sources 0.00 0.00 28,756.10 28,756.10
Total revenues 978,473.61 130,333.08 28,756.10 1,137,562.79
EXPENDITURES:
Instruction: '
Salaries of teachers 251,449.90 0.00 4,462.00 255,911.90
Secretarial/clerical salaries 0.00 874.90 1,487.60 2,362.50
Other instructional salaries 0.00 15,040.00 10,285.00 25,325.00
Purchased professional
technical services 23,177.04 0.00 0.00 23,177.04
Other purchased services 0.00 0.00 6,625.10 6,625.10
Textbooks 0.00 7,073.38 0.00 7,073.38
General supplies 95,972.55 4,695.52 1,025.25 101,693.32
Tuition 457,366.28 0.00 0.00 457,366.28
Total instruction 827,965.77 27,683.80 23,884.95 879,534.52
Support services:
Salaries 48,047.00 0.00 0.00 48,047.00
Employee benefits 73,528.00 5,697.10 0.00 79,225.10
Purchased educational services 13,985.00 74,319.82 2,299.15 90,603.97
Purchased technical services 11,634.27 625.00 0.00 12,259.27
Other purchased services 0.00 18,940.55 0.00 18,940.55
Communications/telephone 0.00 200.00 0.00 200.00
Travel 0.00 176.00 472.00 648.00
Supplies 2,762.39 2,690.81 2,100.00 7,553.20
Other objects 551.18 0.00 0.00 551.18
Total support services 150,507.84 102,649.28 4,871.15 258,028.27
Total expenditures 978,473.61 130,333.08 28,756.10 1,137,562.79
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures and other
financing sources (uses) 0.00 $ 0.00 0.00 0.00
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EXHIBIT F-2

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Capital Projects Fund _
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
‘ Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2011

REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

~ State sources - SDA grant $ 255,526.00
Transfers 325,516.00
Total revenues and other financing sources | 581,042.00

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES:

Purchased professional and technical services _ ' 5,382.00
Construction services 575,660.00
Total expenditures and other financing uses 581,042.00
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $ 0.00
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Food Services Enterprise Fund '
Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Current assets:

Cash
Accounts receivable:
Federal
State
Inventories
Total current assets
Fixed assets:
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Total current liabilities

Net assets:
Unreserved

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets
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4,870.57

12,948.32
422.99
10,159.23

28,401.11

430,281.24
(404,455.12)

25,826.12

54,227.23

11,535.24

11,535.24

42,691.99

42,691.99

54,227.23




PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Food Services Enterprise Fund

EXHIBIT G-2

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:
Local sources:
Daily sales-reimbursable programs:
School lunch program
School breakfast program
Daily sales non-reimbursable programs
Special functions

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries and benefits
Supplies and materials
Cost of sales
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State sources:
State school lunch program
Federal sources:
National school lunch program
National school breakfast program
Food distribution program
Total nonoperating revenues

Net income (lbss) before contributions and transfers

Transfer in - fixed assets redistributed from general fund
Gain or (loss) on disposal of fixed assets

Change in net assets
Net assets - July 1

Net assets - June 30
-72-

217,583.60
1,842.40
123,629.95
8,655.79

351,711.74

292,379.72
22,068.70
255,517.61
3,555.26
38,000.00

611,521.29

(259,809.55)

6,557.23

201,778.26
6,590.72
27,953.92

242,880.13

(16,929.42)

2,901.50
455.11

(13,572.81)

56,264.80

$

© 42,691.99




PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Food Services Enterprise Fund
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

State sources

Federal sources _
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing
activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - July 1
Cash and cash equivalents - June 30
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to cash provided (used) by

operating activities:
Depreciation
Food distribution program
Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in inventory
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash used by operating activities
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$  391,205.05
(292,379.72)
(284,275.78)

(185,450.45)

6,957.84
211,068.27

218,026.11

(9,885.74)

(9,885.74)

22,689.92

(17,819.35)

$ 4,870.57

$  (259,809.55)
3,555.26
27,953.92

31,314.68
11,535.24

$  (185,450.45)




PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Internal Service Fund '
Combining Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash
Total current assets
Fixed assets:
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total fixed assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total current liabilities
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related
debt »
Unrestricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets
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92,350.95

92,350.95

169,925.21
(93,004.05)

76,921.16

169,272.11

259.25

259.25

76,921.16
92,091.70

169,012.86

169,272.11
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Internal Service Fund

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees and employee benefits
Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
~ Net cash provided by (used for)
capital and related financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - July 1

Cash and cash equivalents - June 30

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (uhsrg_d) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to cash provided (used) by
operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
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761,468.89
(557,369.21)
(239,038.41)

(34,938.73)

(21,380.70)

(21,380.70)

(56,319.43)

148,670.38

92,350.95

(40,388.19)

13,595.95

(8,146.49)

(34,938.73)
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EXHIBIT H-2

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Fiduciary Fund
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

OPERATING REVENUES:

Deduction from employees' salaries $ 36,731.70
Interest earned : 446.32
Total operating revenues 37,178.02

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Claims | 270,016.44

Quarterly reports 10,656.03

Penalty _ _ 279.15
Total operating expenses 280,951.62
Operating income (loss) : (243,773.60)
Fund balances - July 1 246,630.15
Fund balances - June 30 $ 2,856.55
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EXHIBIT H-3

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Student Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Balance Balance
July Cash Cash June
1,2010 Receipts Disbursements 30, 2011
Elementary schools: ,

Central Park $ 64223 $ 204 $ - $ 644.27

Penn Beach 2,505.95 462.54 92.25 2,876.24

Valley Park 1,819.19 1,816.39 1,400.00 2,235.58
Total elementary schools 4,967.37 2,280.97 1,492.25 5,756.09
Junior high school:

Pennsville Middle School 16,644.57 6,520.39 4,920.12 18,244.84
Total junior high school 16,644.57 6,520.39 4,920.12 18,244.84
Senior high school:

Pennsville Memorial High 7

School 127,545.11 279,110.11 271,328.94 135,326.28

Pennsville athletic fund 0.00 37,062.82 37,011.83 50.99

Total senior high school 127,545.11 316,172.93 308,340.77 135,377.27
32497429 $ 314,753.14 § 159,378.20

Total all schools $ 149,157.05 $

_79-



8ET0LEET €9'L6L°80€°CT LT99L10€°TT YL TEL OV

L6°TSH 901 60°9LL69T SH ELS6ET 19°659°9¢ 1

9¢91 9L 8¥1°1 TE'S9T°T 000

000 0¥'66£°606°6 0¥'66€°606°6 000

S8 1€T LT 8C'CLY 8TI T S.wmoJmﬂﬁ €1°LLOY

8CTOLEET €9°L6L°80€°TT LT99L°10€°TT PL'TEL OV

8C TOLEET €9°L6L°80€°TT LT99LT0ECT PL'TEL OV
1102 ‘0¢ SjUWASINGSI(T s1d1009y 010T ‘1

aung ysed ysed Aing

ooue[eqg ooue[eqg

¥-H LIGIHXH

1107 ‘0€ dung papuy 1ed X [83s1 Y} J0q
JuuISINGsI(q pue s3d1a03y] Jo snpayog
punyg Auddy jjoiled

LOIILSId TOOHOS JIHSNAMOL TTIIASNNAd

son[Iqel] [ej0L

sofem pue salIe[eS PonIooy

91qeAed sjunoooe punjisiu]

[jo1Aed 10N

sSurpjoyyiim pue suononpap [j0iked
SHILITIIVTT

S]asse [B10 ],

sjuo[eAlnbo yseo wc.m yseD
‘S1ESSV

1
S
P



8T'8TL V8L $ 10°0S8°€¥YT $  6T'8LS'8TO°1 $
€TSYI‘6ST 6€°8Y0°€S 79'€61°C1T %S°1 6£°8¥0°€S €1-01/T1/L 00'0T6°L00°1 £6/81/8 wer3oxd oJes
S0'€85°ST9 $ 79108061 $§ L9PBE9IS $  %88T'S YT TY6'LIT E1/ST/L
8€'5LE'S0T Cl/ST/L ueo]
€9'597°661 $ [1/S1/L 00°6SL‘€TOE $ €6/81/8 1ofoxd jews
1102 ‘0€ poanayg 0102 ‘1 o1y unoury oreq onss| onss] anss]
sunf Ang EENES 1) SOLINJEIA] [ENUUY JO junowy JO °re
Jouejeg .

-1 LIGIHXA

ooueeq

1102 ‘o€ dunp
spuog [eLI3S JO ANPaydS
dnoao juno’y 3qaQq WAL -3U0] [RIIUID)
LOTYLSIA TOOHODS dIHSNMOL FTTIASNNAd

-81-



00°0 TV TS0°0LT $ - TH'TSO°0LT $
000 TY'TS0°0LT $ TrTsooLT $  %OLYY €0°€TI‘TL §  00°000°8€8 $ sIeak g LO/¥1/80 wsAs
Surneisuag somod
JLI1J99]9 O1BI[0AOIOYJ
1102 ‘o€ paIney 0102 ‘o€ J1qeded 15219U] Tediounid asea] I8 SoLIag
sunf sunf ey anss] [euISLIO JO JUNOWY Jo Jo
SuipuesinQ Surpuelsinp 1SaI3U] sy, Aaeq
junoury jnoury
1102 ‘0€ dung

¢1 LI9THXA

sased] peyde) Japun) suonesiqQO Jo npayos
dno.s) Junoddy 3qa( WA I -3u0r] [BIUdN)
LOTIISIAd TOOHOS dIHSNMOL HTTIASNNAL

-82.-



(z€'0) $ 901 $ vLO $ 000 $ vLO $ 0¢ sunf - adueeq pung
000 L0 L0 000 L0 I A[nf - 2due[eq punyg
(zg0) 7€°0 00°0 00'0 00°0 somyrpuadxa (Jopun) JOAO SINUIAI JO (AOULIOIJAP) SSAOXT
€0 89'09LV8C 00'19L¥8C 000 00'19L¥8C seinipuadxa [ejo,
(430 89'09L V8T 00'19L¥8T 000 00'19Lv8C 901AI0s 1qap Je[n3al [ejo],

000 10°0S8°¢HT 10°0S8°€¥T 10°0 00'0S8°€¥T [ediourid jo uondurepay
0 L9°016°0Y 66'016°07 (10°0) 00'116°0F 1sa193u] |
. 1901A19S 1qop Je[n3ay oo_m

‘SHANLIANAdXH.
000 00'19L¥8C 00'19L°8C 000 00'19L%8C SonusAal [e10]
000 00'801°CL . 00'801°CL 000 00'801°CL $32JN0S 9Je)S [BI0],
00°0 00'801°CL 00'801°CL 000 ) 00'801°CL 11 odA1 pre 991A10S 1g2Q
: :S90.1M0S 818)S
000 $ 00€59CIT $ 00€$9CIC $ 000 $ 00€S9TIT $ AAo xe} [8907]
:$92IN0S [B90]
‘SHNANIATT
103png oJ, [eul] [emoy 108png sIoJsuel], 103png
dUBLIBA [euy 198png rewsuQ
1102 ‘0€ dunp papuy 1ed X [BISL 3y} 10
punj aIARS 193
a[npayds uostiedwo)) Lieyagdpng
€I LIdIHXA

LONILSIA TOOHOS dIHSNMO.L HTIIASNNAd



Statistical Section

Financial Trends - These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
District’s financial performance and well being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity - These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity - These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the
District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information - These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to
help the reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District provides
and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year. The District implemented GASB Statement 34 in
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003; schedules presenting district-wide information include information
beginning in that year.



(€0 1v97T18 D) §  (80°S6vvL8T) § (80°S9T T8’ 1) § (99°959°LL8) § (010T°1€6) § (TL08LPLI'T)  § (0TLL6800'D) § 81 06VEII'T $§ SOPYL'SS6T §
(61°0s8°019°1)  (16'9s.106')  (I8°€L6'TILT)  (bL'v0s9¥9°T)  (99°90¥v964°1)  (€€°S€67799° D) (T8ELEVILT) (b9°598°LLI'T) (6v'Lp1EILT)
T5°6¥5°061 62°207°CEl 18°420°9LS TS'9LE'698 08'S0L‘8L6 $8'L78196 00'026'0T6 1€'€89TS0°1 LEPPITITT
(9c0peT6ET) § (Or'0p6'p0I°D) §  (8091€°889) §  (bp'8TS°001) § (LI'00S'EI¥) § (VTELYELY) § (8€€TS'SIT)  $  ISTLYVETT §  OTLPLLSST §
(0s'6L8%6S1)  § (65'1pv'861) § (08°60L°581) § (bsLIE6ED) § (9€HLS6Y) §  EvEVEL] $  18'806I §  08'V9T9S $  66'169°TH $
(Pts01°8L1) (09'v9€°€1T) (12°895°961) (L TIv'091) (21°260'8L) (LL'60Y"L) (0z'8v6'%) LL'STIOp L8'598°91
000 000 000 000 00'0 000 000 000 000
p6'sTT8L  §  10°€T6'p1 $ 1685801 § 1TS60'IT $  9LLIS'ST  $  OTESLYT $ 10580 $  €06E1°91 §  T1'9T8'sT $
(519789 §  (6v'€509L9T) § (8T'sss8€9' 1) § (Tl'6ec8eL) § (29979°188) § (Srvziz6l'D)  § (10988bZ0° 1) § . 8ESTTLSOT $ 60TSOEI6T §
(SLYPLTEY'T) (1e'z6€889°1)  (o1's0v°sisT)  (667160°98v° 1)  (psvle8Ip 1)  (9§'STS'SSHT) (29'sT¥'60L°T) Tr166°L1TT) (o€ €10°0ELT)
T5°6¥5°061 62°20TTEL 18'920°9LS TS'9LE698 08'S0L‘8L6 $8'L78°196 00'026°076 1€'€84°TSO°T LEPPITILT
(0£'995°0I° 1) §  (L'e98'6IID) § (66vL1°669) § ($9'€T9'1Tl) $§ (€6°L10°THP) $  (bp'9TH'869) $ (6£08€9€7) $ BYPEELTTLT $ 80'ITEIEST
€007 002 $00C 9002 L00T 800 6002 0102 1102

-1 LIGIHXH

Suppunoooy fo sysvg jpnidoy
SIB3X [BISI] QUIN IS8T
juauodwmo)) g s)assy 3N
LONISIA TOOHDS dIHSNAAOL ATTIASNNAd

SIOSSE 13U SANANIE SPIM-IOUISIP [BIOL 1
(=]
pawomsouny !
pajomsay
193p paje|al JO Jou ‘sjasse [eNdes ur pajsaAu]
'S3IALOR BPIM-IOLISIT

S105S® 10U sanianoe adAl-ssouisng [e10],

paloLysauf

pajoLnsay

1qap pale[a1 Jo Jau “sjasse [ended ug pajsaau]
:san1anoe adAy-ssauisng

$JaSSE 12U SANANOE ~m~=0E=h®>ow el

palomsaluf)

palsay

1qop Pale[al JO 19U ‘s)asse [e11des ul paisaau]
'SANIATIOR [BJUBWUIDAOL)



(€¥'S81°891°12) §

(€9°0897%1077) § (0€0I8IS0°ET) $

(s9°c60'885°€) § (61°€6T°66LTT) § (66v2071L6'ST) § (16¥¥6°LL09T) §. (8¥'208°11S'ST) § (06+9€1L197) $

(£8'8L9°9€)

(60°795°8¢)

6LTELTT

9TLISLE

L0°9$S"8L

6L°L16'99

(ze9sTD)

66'SSE0Y

(Zv'62691)

(95905 111°17) §  (vs'811°9L6'127) § (60'Tvs‘cLo'cT) § (16'079's29°cT) § (9T'6v8°L18VT) § (8LTY6'LE0'OT) § (65'889920°07) § (Lv'8S1°TSS'sT) §  (8¥'SEv'PSI‘oT) §

LS'BSILOSE §  SSEVE6YOY § BTI68V60Y § LSOELLERY §  6EVOBLEOS §  YLEVBOISS  §  S9LTITESY § V8YLSTLES §  61TH6VSEY §
98'IZE THY 6'880'9S¥ 89 1ST°9LS 66'081°€09 LI'T98'TH9 90°2ZS'7$9 1L°799°18S 89'788°€79 L8165 65
€TYS6CLl $1°998°9C1 08'869'%61 95°07T 62T STLY6HTT 1ZTH0EIT 66'0£S961 86 TS8'LET £1°088°TC
€9°L9€'81¢€ yE€'TTT6TE 88'75S°18€ £V'096°€LE 26'€16'91Y S86LY'6EY TLIE1'S8E 0L'620°98€ PLTIL'ISE
[L9£87590°€ 90°$ST €65 € 09'6£9°815'€ 8S6VS VEL Y TTEV6'SS0'S 89 1ZE VOIS ¥6'¥96°0S0°'Y 91°Z69°8YLY TE0SE06L'E
T¥'L95°009C STIT6TITE 69°€65°LS0'E 80'0T08EL’E Ly'889°THS Y 8I'SEI9L9Y ¥ €65 01H'E ¥S'1€6'666'€ €7’ 188'820°C
67°692'$9% $  18€€E'08y $  16'SP0'19F $  0S'6£5'96¥ $  SLYSTYIS $  05'981'88¥ $  0§'1LE0¥9 $  79°09L'8YL $  68'89¥°19L $

00VPESLIYT $

81'¥20790'9C §

8S'TOLOVILT §

TTYI8STY'8T §

8S°L60'LEYOE §  €L'898°L8LTIE §

9S'TLSOIL0E $

TELLEVSY0E §

60°L0E9SS0E $

€L°000'86¥ 85059161 68'615VSS €L°€59°9S 01'SO£€9S LT¥09°58S €0'616°C8S 69'975€8S 62125119
€L'000'86% 85°0S9'V6Y 68°615¥SS €L°€59°69S 01'S0E€9S LT$09°58¢ €0'616778S 69°9$7€8S 6125119
LTUEYELLIVT 09'€LE°695°ST 69'181°7659C 61°0L1°098°LT 87 T6L ELY6T 9%'¥9T 0T 1€ €S ESOLTI0E £9'058°00€°0€ 08'S8LV6'67
67'866°LLE STT6v'6LT STTTI'STT 81 T0LSIT £0'7S670T ¥1°€06°861 86'76L €81 $9°Z8%° 10T S0'98S°€1T
80°800°L91 9L'Y6L'E0T LY'09Z Ty 80'¥EC°98 ¥8°0v6°9L LL'OST'LY £Y'TETLS (X AAL] L$'869°6€
69716201 68'¥9L Y01 €6'T11 €01 8T'€TI'I1I #0'605°601 9’ 19€101 8L'189°TL SS'6¥L°801 L8'LOET
SYII8'OPL'Y 0Z'¥$8°S06'y 19°8€5°980°S 8€°0SH°€9S’S TL9s1°7TS’9 99'€LT'€90°L T6'LE9°LT8'S 0L'86YPLI‘9 9I'v1$861°9
¥6'€66'891°1 €8'€LY'9TT'T €8'V0E'61 €T 90'T€5°STH 1 89°00L°2TS°1 €1°20§°614°1 79'988°8S€°1 8T €81°L6T°1 LT86V' V61T
¥9'6SETHT'T LEV8Y'YSYT €6'VIETLS'T L6'91E'€TS T SSLIVTLYT S0'€80°TEL'T TE'T6SLIS'T 80°06L'L9ST 6€£'TSOTEL'T
¥6'882°S9L £r'119°€28 69'9€€°1L8 28'6£6'616 €9°'111°0v6 ELVIT'P60°] 99°9¥T11T'1 L§'$50°922'1 88'80%°79Z°1
80'699°72Z°1 60'80S°SYT'1 L6'YTIWT'T 87'€89°CT¢E1 12°€62°561°1 1€°019°0€Z°1 £6'€69°6€T°1 08'6L1°T2T1 SEILY6LT'T
£0'666'0¥€°T ¥8'LEV'SSY'T ¥6'vY6'vEST 9E'9YY°L86'T 99'9€L¥91'E 66'LOL'9ET'E SP'T8L'SLI‘E 05'99€"vhb'e 1€885v80°€
0Z'TS0'0€1‘T [€€LT66€°1 19'P11YTST YEEOV TPl 69'595°868'1 I7'629°LyL'] 81°019'6LS‘1 6€LI6VYE' 07 €£78'v68
£V'SS86EL TL'SSS €T8 9EVLY'TSS €T°6L0'TES 0T £8Y°T¥6 80°9%0'056 6LST6'ST0°1 TS0Vl y8'€8YLTT'1
TLY8E'1TT 78'686°0S 1 ¥8'¥8L°801 99vLETIT T€'9LT'6S1 0t'910°10Z TEYIEYET £6'7L9'081 8L919'¢61
LS'HTS'L8S ] 61'700'8%9°1 L6'ST6TEL'] €9°1€1'€88°1 £V EPILIO'T SSTETI'00€'T SH'T01'SE5°T S6'1ETPLY'T 16'LLE'LYY'T

17°58%°696'L  $

88'1€6'LY6'L  $

6T'120°€LE'S 8

TTESLISET'S  §

81°S00°LYH'S

$  8L'119%6s8'8 S

0L'101°560°6  $

6T8SV'TI6  §

TESEVLI'6  $

£00T

[ LIGTHXT

$00Z

$00T

900T

L00T

8007

600T

Suyunody fo sisog jpniooy
SIB3 X [BISI] JUIN IS8T
§)955Y 1N uf sa8usy)
LOIMLSIA TOOHOS dIHSNMOL TTTASNNAd

010z

1oz

sasuadxa Jau IPIM-1OLLSIP [BIO]

sanianoe adAl-ssauisng
SINIANOE [EIUSWILIIAOD)
:sanuaAal/(sasuadxa) 10N

SONUIARL JOLUSIP [EI0L,

S3INUIASI SANIANOE adA)-ssauisnq [eI0 L
suonnqinuos pue syuesd Sunerndo
$30IAI3S POO]
'S301AIDS J0J sadrey)
isaniAnoe ad4y-ssauisng

SINUIAI SIIALIE [BJUSUNLIIAOS [E10]
suonnqyuos pue syuerd Sunesadg
uononysuf
1$01AI3S 10 sarey)
'SANIAIOE [BJUIUMLIIAOD)
IsanuaARY

sasuadxa JoLusip (@10,

sasuadxa santanoe adA1-ssauisng [e10 |,
S391AI3S POO]
:s311AN0. adAy-ssauisng

sasuadxa sanAnoe [eusunLaAog [ejo ]
uonerdaidap paresofjeun)
13p una)-3uo] uo Jsa1u]
sjooyos [ervadg
s991A19s poddns 120
uonenodsuen [idng
Joueudurew pue suonerddo juejd
uOLBOSIUIWIPE SSIUISNG PUE [RI3UID)
$I0IAIAS [RIUID PUE UOHERASIUIWPE [OOYIS
SI0IAISS PIJB[a] UONONLYSUI PUE JUIPIYS
uonin],
:5301A19s poddng
uononysul 13YI0
uoneanpa [e1oads Lo
uopneonpa [e1vadg
remgoy
‘uononysuy
ISINANOR [BIUIUILIDAOD)
:sasuadxyg

_85-



s IPLA-OLISIP [0

(Ly'8ssIIe)  §  S¥908°LIE $ T000£Z°0S0T $ ¢v'809°9¥6 $ L868E8CT § (696LS°€VT)  § TS €08°SII $ 8CLOVTTIT § 06€STTYS
(£8'8L979¢) (60'795°8¢€) 6LTELTI 97'T6£9¥ 8I°EPL68 6L°L1699 @over ) 66'SSE0Y (aszLsen
(09'606'7S7)  $  ¥$'89€°95¢ $ 1T'86Y'LE0'T §  91'91Z°006 $ (1€£es€'19) s (8v'Levore) $  PI'8ETLII $ 6ET111'780CT $  1L'978'ss8

sanianoe adAj-ssouisng
$ SINIATIOR [EJUIUNLIDAOD)
:s3985% Jou wi aJuey)

S S31YIAIIOE PIM-1OLISIP [BI0]

santAnoe adK1-ssauisng [ejo |

sjusunsnfpe pouad touxd pue sjesodsip 3asse paxig
:sanianoe adK-ssaursng

SANIAIIOR |BIUSUNLIAOT (810

uononpal/(aseatout) saaussqe paresuaduro))
1g3p papuoq Jo Suroueuryar woiy sfutaeg
sdiys1ejoyos 10§ sysanbag
sjuaunsnfpe ases| [ende)
panss| ased] [ende)
syusunsnfpe pouad toud ‘sjesodsip ‘suonippe josse paxiy
SI9JsueL]
3UI00Ul SNOSUR[IISIN
sBurures JuaunsaAug
S[ENPIATPUI WO} $99) uoneHodsues]
PaAIada1 uONIN,
suonnqLuos pue syuesd pajorssy
SuoHNQLIUOY pue sHueId pajoLysaun)
99IAIDS 1Qap 10§ PAIA3] SIXB],
$ 10u ‘sasodind [e1ouaF 105 pataa] saxey Auadolg
ISONIATIOR [BIUSWILISA0D)
1519558 19U Ul S9FUBYD IGO0 PUB SINUIAII [BISUID

06965 958'0L § BOLSVCEECZ S OEOVOCOIVC § LOCOLPESHC $ O0E8OLOLPL § OLSPPLILSC § EVSWLEVCOT S OB69CPEOLL S O8SIOEIOLL
000 00'0 (00°000°6) 00'598°8 TTL81°T1 00°0 (0€'8LT) 000 19°95€'€
000 000 (00°000°6) 00'598°8 TUL8TTT 000 (o€'8LT) 000 19°95¢€°€
96'965°958°0T 80'L8Y CEETT 0€0¥0'111%C LOLES'STS VT S6'S6Y9SL YT 0E'SPY'LTL'ST €L'9T6°€VT'9T 98'69T ¥£9'LT 61'797°010°LT
00’0 95°060°T9 69'VIT'T6 y1861 (80°8¥8°901) yS16STIT ¥T'0g6'6Y) (reieey) YELLI08T
00'0 00'0 YT'8YILY 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 95°90L‘88 000 000 000 000 000 000
000 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 08'LSE'EIT 000
000 000 000 000 (00°000°505) (00°000°8€8) 000 000 000
00'0 SS'8EES 10°L16°6ZY 20°€60°LI 00°0LE8T 85 YOV 1€ (21°698°97) SY'SPP'S09 80°LY9'ehE
000 000 (90°9L£'08) (00°000°s) (00°000°sL) 00°000°05) 000 000 000
90°L9S"6¥ 88'€66'€6 61'SIE'68 69'91L'811 07'090°¢6 81°9¥5 8€1 96'vE€8'ELI £9'6SP €€ LO'L9T'T6T
0T'LS6'€T L6'9SS €T 95°L19'vE 69'682°S9 S6'12L'86 95'2TTvEl 09'96L°6€ ¥0'6PL 11 11'92L'6
0L'SOL'TS 96'1Z1'vS 8L'09Z°6S 05°L68'SL 96'81§°TL ST'LYI'08 TTETIL 00'0 00°011°LS
00°0 9I'8¥61 $0'820°6 88°901°C LL'8Y691 81°08T'pS 1€'8E1'SL 0L 0TE YY1 STsTI'oTl
000 000 000 00'0 000 000 000 000 00'925°6ST
00°€02°599°L 00'690°6L6'L 675061808 ST'OEI‘EET'S ST'EVE'TSO'S 10°LSE'TOE'S 00°STE6IL'S SE9IIPI‘6 Pr'896'V16°L
00°SYH'Y1T 00'$TL'TIT 00'0£8°68 00°090°S¥T 00'8L2°L02 00'€6¥'50T 00°LZL°€0T 00'69L°102 00'€$9°21¢
00'659°1S8ZT §  00°€V9°0Z8‘El §  O00°ELSOZI'ST §  OQ0'SHPE'EPI'ST $  00°€OI‘¥88'91 $  00'EPELSSLI  §  00T60TEOLL §  0069v'9ZTLI $  00°T90VTSLI

£00Z ¥00T $00Z 900Z L00T 800T 6002 0102 1102

Bunpunoooy Jo sisog jpniooy
$183 X [BISL ] QuUIN IS8
§3955Y 9N uj sa8usy)
LOMMLSIA TOOHDS dHSNMOL ITHASNNA

(papnppuo))

£ LIGTHXJ

-86-



‘$S GSVO 01 28uryd oY) $193331 1[0Z 210N

8S°TTLYL {os€1vD) £7'0LE98 v1'6v¥98 6v'LTS98 §  LOTI998 $ T96¥6'88 $ ITYEL'SS 11'%90°06 $ Spufy [BIUSWIUISA0S J3Y10 [[B [eI0L
000 000 L1'8L 68951 8y ¥ET 0S'LIE 0SLIE 16'9C STl punj JusuruLag
¥9'1 00'1 0Z0 61°0 $6°0 §34 80°[ ¥L0 90'[ puny 901A198 193
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 PTSPEL puny spoafoid [ende)
(05°050°L) 0sv1+°0) (0s¥1¥°2) (0s'v1°7) (0S¥1¥°27) 0s'¥1¥0) 000 000 000 puny anusAsl [eroadg
:ui papodal ‘paatesaiuf)
PPILLL8 000 95'90L 88 95'90L‘88 95'90L'88  $§  95°90L‘88 $ $01£9'88 $  95°90L'88 95'90L‘88 $ paatesay
Spuny |ejuswuIoA0g Jayjo ||y
78°0€6'78S S8°6vL°L8T 00°LST'9TL 0L 189°LL6 1€1S218C°T §  6TLYIIIIT  §  65916°L08 §  8ESILEIY] 60'1€0°TLL $ pury [e1ousad [el0L
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 (Ly'Ls6'9S1) paugisseun
000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 LEYTO90L pausissy
000 000 000 000 000 00°0 000 000 61'%96°7CT parisay
1€°01v'9¢€ 0v'780°€61 95'78T¥8S 98°L98°T61 88'S8Y°€CT $8'850°00 (1L'ep1'8€0) (ovr'eLLeLe) 000 paaiasaluf)
15°025'8¥C SP'L99V6 PrvL6 Y] P8 €I8V8L EP'S9LLSO'T §  PP88S°II6 $  0€0909%0°T § 8L8SYLEL'I 000 $ pontasay
puny je1ausH
€002 ¥00T $00¢ 9002 L00T 8002 600T 0102 1102

€-f LIGIHXHA

Supunoooy fo sisng wnaoy patfipo
SIB3X [BISI] dUIN 3Se|
Spuny [BJUSUWIILISAOL) - SRdUB[BY puny

LORILSIA TOOHIOS dIHSNMO.L ATTIASNNAd

-87-



‘spiodal uu_‘:mmo “00._=0m

*$301A10s poddns 19130 pue sssmisnq se $901A19s p1oddns 190 ur PaUIqUIOS 319m ABO[OUT|03] UOHBULIOJUI JANEISIUILIPE PUB SSOIAIDS [ENUS ‘S00T ‘OE dUnf 0} J0Ly
'$00T ‘0€ dunf pud reak yiim Buruuidaq pappe s19Mm SUONEOLISSE JUNoooe ABo[outoa) UOHBULIOJUI SALELSIUIUIPE PUB SIOIAIDS [EIJUS))
‘Kepno [eydeo sso| samyipuadxa [e10) are samyipuadxa [endesuoN 210N

(€9'669°169)

(85€SH 14T) $  SPEbES $  80'167°LTS $  Ip'€0S1ST $  96'LY9E0E $ (rels’e9l)  § (SI'E6E108) §  8E'€8SSSY $ $
000 000 95°90L'8E (00°000°5L) 00'000 0EH 00°000°88L 00°0 00'0 (00'915°7¢)
(00°2zE88) (00°0€1°6S) (90°9L£705) (00'850°86€) (00°000°5L) (00°000°05) 000 (001 (00°915752€)
00°Z7TE‘8S 00°0€1'6S 90'9LE 00°850°€T€E 000 000 000 00’1 00'0
000 000 000 000 00°000°'s0S 00°000°8€8 00'0 000 00°0
000 000 95'90L'88 000 00'0 00°0 000 000 000
(8s°€st'142) SPEVE'S 75'85°88Y 14'€05°9Z¢ (vo'zse'ozl) (¥'615°L56) (ST€6€£°10E) 8E'€85°SS9 (€£9°€81°99€)
96'SYO'1EL'ET LL'SSOEEEST pLTST190°9T 85750566 LT 0£080'110°0€ 08'€r0'S01°CE 89°TIL TE0 OF 88 1€L €0T OF £8'9L6°5TS 67
LOOSLSTT 01°609°L0T SO'LIT'SY 12°8€€°06 66'90C 18 TESILIL 9E'SY8T9 0T €85°1S L9°0160%
06'659'681 PS6LES61 SL'00T'¥ET 08'SEE°LOT STIZ0PIT T1'696'02T LO'6TE'8TT P1°208'SET 10°0S8°€4T
1+'282'101 88'1LL'80T 05°Z6¥'61 0L'€28'89S LL'ETISSS 0$"¥90°868 LS'TS6'8YT 0L'1S9°8LS 01°9L6°LEE
69'T16'201 68'Y9L¥01 €6'TIH €01 8TELI'TIT 0605601 9p'19€'101 8L 189TL SS'6¥L‘301 L8'LOET
SYTISOpT'Y 07" #S8°S06'Y 19'8£5°980°S 8E°0SH'€9S'S TL'9ST'TTS'9 99'€LT'€90'L T6'LEY'LTS'S OL'86¥PLI‘9 9I'P1S‘861°9
v6°€66°891°1 €8'€LY'9TT'T £8°vOE'61E' 90' €S STY'l 89°00LTTS' £1°70S°614°1 79'988°85€°1 8T'EBI'L6I'T LT86V P61°1
LS'EIS'0EE'T TESIT'96'T €6 PIE'TLS'T LE'9TEETST 85°SP9'89L'T 85'6L0°00Z°E £8°020°€TLT 80°06L'L9S'T 6€°TSO'TEL'T
v6'88T'S9L £P119'€T8 69'9€€'1L8 78'6£6'616 €9°T11°0v6 ELPIT'P60°T 99'9%T112°1 L§'SS0'9TT'1 88'804°29C'1
80'699°7T'1 60'80S'SHT'1 L6'T9'9VT' 87'€89'7ZE1 17€6T°561°1 1€°019°0€2'1 £6'€69°6£T' 08'6L1TTT'1 SEILY'6LT T
£0°666'0VE‘T YRLEV'SSP'T Y6 b6 PES'T 9E'9IPY'LB6T 99°9€L'p9I'E 66'LOL'9ET'E SY'TBL'BLI'E 0S'99EPHH'E 1€'885°80°€
0T'TSO'0ET’l 1€°ELT'66€ 1 19114281 PEEOV 1491 69'595'868°[ 17'6T9°LYLT 81°019°6LS"1 6€°LI6 PPET 07'€78'p68
PL'8LS 08T TTI6Y'S6E €8°L10°68€ L8'V6E°TOY SI'v80'STY 96'€9T°09 Y8'9SY'LEY 08°065 ¥8Y 1L°TTT6EY
TLY8EITT ¥8'686°0S 1 Y8 8L 801 99'bLETIT TE9LT'6S1 04'910°10T TEVIEPET €6'7L9°081 8L919€61
LS'PTS LBS'T 61'200°849'1 L6'STE'TEL' €9 TE1'E88°L EVEYI'LIOT SSETI'00€°T SY'TO1'SES'T S6'IETYLY'T 16°LLELYY'T
S9'b6STE0'S 60'899'696'L 6T120'€LE'S TT6SL'SET'S 81°S00°LYH'8 8L119'658°8 0L 101°560°6 6785H'T16'8 TTESEPLI6
8ET6S' 68V €T TU 665 8EE ST 9T LEL'6VS'9T 66'SSS 17¢€ 8T 97'8TL¥88°67 9E VTS LYIIE €S61E1EL'6T 97’ STE658°0¢€ 07 €6L°6S1'6C
YULIL'T6S 8L°L8E'989 EE V69 VLS LES6LTS6 YE¥68°8Y8 80'869°S8L LSLLY'EE0T £9°201 v6¥'T €0°621°100'1
05°S6V'SL9'6 LY'LST'STHOL 16'€€58YS°01 98 IST'6LII1 17'$€5929'11 TO'0LETIOTI PL198'€S8°01 01°SSL'6Y6'6 PLY96°C16°6
$8'TSS'6L 88'85L'ETI $9'661°€11 69°606°LS1 £8°LTL6T1 LTOLELIE 60'P0b'91 Y £8'888°T¥8 LI'€T0'12€
0T'LS6'ET L6'9SS €1 9S'LI9'VE 69'68T'S9 S6'1TL‘86 95°TTTPET 09°96L°6€ 0001 11'92L'6
OL'SOL'IS 96°1Z1'vS 8L'09T'6S 05°L68'SL 96°81STL STLYI'08 TTETR'IL 000 00011°LS
000 91'8Y6 11 ¥0'820'6 88'901'C LL'8Y6'91 81°08Z'vS 1€8€1'SL 0L'0ZE YY1 SI'STI0TI
00'v01°990€T  §  00'89E°€E0'PI §  O00'EOPOIT'ST $  00'SOP'888‘ST $ 00 ISET60°LT §  00°9€8TILLI  §  00'8IS'SETLI $ 00'BETBTY'LI § 00SIL'OEL'LT §
€002 $00T $002 900T L00T 600T 010Z 110z

p-r LIGIHX3A

8002

Juyunodrsy fo sisng wnaddy parfipopy
$183 { [BISL] Ul IS8
Spunj [BIUIWILLIIA0Y) - SIDUB[BY puny uy safuey)

1OIY.LSId TOOHDS dIHSNAMOL ATIIASNNAd

seouejeq puny ur s3ueyd joN

(sasn) saounos Suroueuly 19yjo [eJ0 ],
no sivFsuel]
ur s1oJsuel]
sases] [eyde))
sdryssejoyos 10y isanbag
:(s9sn) saoanos Suisueury YO

sanyipusdxa
(19pun) 19A0 SANUBASI JO (ASUBIOAP) SS9OXY

sainyipuadxs [ejo

sa81eyp 1510 pue Jsa19)u]
[edioutg

1901108 1q2(

Kepno [ende)

sjooyos [eroadg
siyauaq sakordurg
uonepodsuen pidng
soureudUIEW pue suonetado juejg
UOHENSIUNUPE SSaUISNG PUE [RJOUSD
SIOIAISS 9ANRIISIUIUIPE [00YDS
$301A19S POJB[OI UOHONIISUI PUE JUSPIIS
uoning

:soo1A19s poddng
uononnsul 1LBYIO
uononysul [e1vads 19Yy10
uononsul uoneonps feroadg
uononnsul se[ngay

‘uononusu|

:samyrpusdxgy

SONUAARI [BIO]
$90JN0S [BI9PS]
$001n0S 2181
SNOJUE[[2ISIN
sButwies Jsaroiu|
$99) uonepodsuer ],
sa1eyo uoning
Ansy xe]

1S2NUSAY

-88-



EXHIBIT J-5

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
General Fund Other Local Revenue By Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting

Fiscal
Year .

Ended Interest On Transportation Solar Renewable

June 30 Tuition Investment Fees Credits Miscellaneous Total
2011 $ 120,125.15  § 9,726.11 § 57,110.00 $ 73,656.00 $ 21832673 $ 478,943.99
2010 144,320.70 11,464.11 0.00 0.00 133,459.63 | 289,244.44
2009 75,138.31 39,796.60 76,823.22 0.00 173,310.48 365,068.61
2008 54,280.18 133,639.54 80,147.25 0.00 138,546.18 406,613.15
2007 16,948.77 98,144.36 72,518.96 0.00 93,060.20 280,672.29
2006 2,106.88 64,710.97 75,897.50 0.00 118,716.69 261,432.04
2005 9,028.04 34,039.39 59,260.78 0.00 89,315.19 191,643.40
2004 11,948.16 13,556.97 54,121.96 0.00 93,993.88 173,620.97
2003 0.00 23,957.20 51,765.70 0.00 49,567.06 125,289.96
2002 0.00 47,79§.89 52,070.80 0.00 48,694.06 148,564.75

Source: District records.
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EXHIBIT J-8

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2011 2002
Percentage Percentage
Of Total Of Total
Taxable - District Net Taxable District Net
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Value Value Value
E.L. DuPont De Numous & Co. $ 135,000,000.00 11.61%
Connectiv Atlantic Generation 29,411,100.00 2.53%
ACP Pennsville Association 16,925,600.00 1.46%
Seigfried (USA), Inc. 13,581,900.00 1.17%
Pennsville Shopping Center, LLC 13,238,800.00 1.14% Not Available
Pennsville Hotel Corp. . 10,396,900.00 0.89%
HP PVL LLC Et Al C/O Metro Prop. - 10,387,300.00 0.89%
Orchard Court Association 8,752,200.00 0.75%
Vision Properties, Cranburry Plaza 5,768,100.00 0.50%
M and P RE LLC (Concorde Building) 4,306,600.00 0.37%
Total _ $ 247,768,500.00 21.31%

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected Within The Fiscal Year

EXHIBIT J-9

Of the Levy*
Fiscal Year Ended Taxes Levied For Current Percentage Collections In

June 30 The Fiscal Year Amount Of Levy Subsequent Year
2011 $ 17,736,715 17,736,715 100.00% $ -
2010 17,428,238 17,428,238 100.00% $ -

- 2009 17,235,818 17,235,818 100.00% -
2008 17,762,836 17,762,836 100.00% -
2007 17,091,381 17,091,381 | 100.00% -
2006 15,888,405 15,888,405 100.00% -
2005 ‘15,210,403 15,210,403 100.00% -
2004 14,033,368 14,033,368 100.00% -
2003 13,066,104 13;066, 104 100.00% -
2002 12,778,762 100.00% -

12,778,762

Source: District records including the certificate and report of school taxes (A4F Form).

*School taxes are collected by the municipal tax collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality
is required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or
certified prior to the end of the school year.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Ratios Of Outstanding Debt By Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities

EXHIBIT J-10

Fiscal Year General Percentage
Ended Obligation Capital Total Of Personal
June 30 Bonds Leases District Income* Per Capita*
2011 784,728.28 0.00 §$§  784,728.28 Not Available $ Not Available
2010 1,028,578.29 270,052.42 1,298,630.71 0.25% 98
2009 1,264,380.43 583,347.33 1,847,727.76 0.36% 138
2008 1,492,709.50 778,775.84 2,271,485.34 0.47% 170
2007 1,713,678.62 408,772.27 2,122,450.89 0.46% 161
2006 1,927,699.87 0.00 1,927,699.87 0.44% 147
2005 2,135,035.67 0.00 2,135,035.67 0.50% 163
2004 2,336,284.66 0.00 »2,336,284.66 0.57% 179
2003 2,531,664.20 63,267.16 2,594,931.36 0.65% 197
2002 2,721,324.12 214,530.53 2,935,854.65 0.77% 224

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

*See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income and

population for the prior calendar year.
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EXHIBIT J-11

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percentage Of

Fiscal Year Actual Taxable

Ended General Obligation Value Of

June 30 Bonds Property* Per Capita**
2011 $ 784,728.28 0.07% $ Not Available
2010 - 1,028,578.29 0.14% 77
2009 1,264,380.43 0.17% 95
2008 1,492,709.50 0.20% 112
2007 1,713,678.62 0.23% 130
2006 1,927,699.87 0.26% 147
2005 2,135,035.67 0.30% 163
2004 2,336,284.66 0.32% 179
2003 2,531,664.20 0.35% 193

2002 ' 2,721,324.12 0.37% 208

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
statements.

*See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.

**Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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EXHIBIT J-12

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

As of December 31,2010
~ Estimated
Estimated Share Of
Debt Percentage Overlapping
Outstanding Applicable* Debt
Debt repaid with property taxes:

Pennsville Township $ 7,739,365.00 100.00% $ 7,739,365.00
Salem County general obligation debt 40,991,000.00 24.09% 9,875,252.45
Subtotal - overlapping debt 17,614,617.45
District's direct debt ‘ 784,728.28
Total direct and overlapping debt “ $ 18,399,345.73

Source: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Salem
County Board of Taxation. Debt outstanding provided by each government unit.

*For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using
taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of
another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the District's boundaries and dividing it by each
unit's outstanding debt.
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EXHIBIT J-14

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Demeographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Capita : Uhemplbyment
Year Population* Personal Incqme** Personal Income*** Rate****
2010 Not Available $ Not Available $ Not Available 8.00%
2009 13,303 509,651,233.00 38,311.00 7.60%
2008 13,349 507,569,027.00 38,023.00 4.40%
2007 13,350 485,953,350.00 - 36,401.00 : 3.40%
2006 | ' 13,195 463,540,350.00 35,130.00 3.40%
‘ 2005 13,132 436,941,036.00 33,273.00 3.30%
2004 13,101 429,752,103.00 32,803.00 3.90%
2003 13,079 408,901,856.00 31,264.00 5.00%
2002 13,143 396,524,310.00 30,170.00 4.60%
2001 13,108 383,304,136.00 29,242.00 3.30%

*Population information provided by the New Jersey Departmeht of Labor and Workforce Development.

**Personal income has been estimated based upon the population and per capita personal income
presented.

***Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the census published by the
U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

****Unemployment data provided by the New Jersey Department of Labor and Workforce
Development.
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EXHIBIT J-15
PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

Principal Employers - Salem County
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2011 2002

Percentage Percentage
Of Total Of Total
o Municipal Municipal
Employer _ Employees Employment Employees Employment
PSEG 1300+ N/A N/A N/A
E.I. duPont 1,250 N/A N/A N/A
Mannington Mills 826 N/A N/A ' N/A
Memorial Hospital of Salemi County 600 N/A N/A N/A
Atlantic City Electric 426 N/A N/A N/A
R.E. Pierson Construction 400+ N/A N/A N/A
Anchor Glass 361 N/A N/A N/A
McLane NJ 352 N/A N/A N/A
Elmer Hospital 350 N/A N/A N/A
Wal-Mart 256 N/A N/A N/A
6121+ 0.000% ' 0 0.000%

Source: Salem County Office of Economic Development

Note: The information provided is for the County of Salem. Information at the municipal level
is not available. :

N/A - Information not available
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EXHIBIT J-20

PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Insurance Schedule

June 30, 2011
Unaudited
GCSSDIIF
Coverage Self Insured Retention Deductible
School package policy - Gloucester, Cumberland,
Salem School Districts Joint Insurance Fund*:
Property - blanket building and contents $ 150,000,000.00 $ 200,000.00 500.00
Property valuation:
Buildings and contents Replacement Cost N/A N/A
Contractors equipment Actual Cash Value N/A N/A
Automobiles Actual Cash Value N/A N/A
General automobile liability 10,000,000.00 150,000.00 None
Boiler and machinery 100,000,000.00 None 1 ,000.00
Crime . 500,000.00 200,000.00 500.00
Educator's legal liability 10,000,000.00 100,000.00 None
Worker's compensation Statutory 250,000.00 None
Pollution legal liability 3,000,000.00 None 25,000.00
* Excess carriers involved:
Property and crime SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America,
Axis Surplus Insurance Company
United National Insurance Company
Max Specialty Insurance Company
Alliance Global Risk US Insurance Company
RSUI Indemnity Company
General liability and automobile liability SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
Workers compensation SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
Educator's legal liability SPELLIJIF, Selective Ins. Co. of America
Group purchase of primary insurance coverage carrier array:
Boiler and machinery Travelers Insurance Company
Pollution legal liability ACE American Insurance Co.
Public employees’ faithful performance blanket
position bond - Selective Insurance Company:
Board secretary/business administrator 10,000.00 N/A N/A
Treasurer of school monies 210,000.00 N/A N/A
Student accident insurance - Monumental
Life Insurance Company 5,000,000.00 N/A None
Flood general policy - Selective Insurance Co. of America
Building 500,000.00 N/A 50,000.00
Contents 500,000.00 N/A 50,000.00
Volunteer workers policy - AIG Companies 500,000.00 N/A None

Source: District records.
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Ball
Buckley &
Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

,.‘ THE AICPA ALLIANCE FOR CPA FIRMS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

(No Material Weaknesses Identified, No Significant Deficiencies Identified,
No Reportable Instances of Noncompliance or Other Matters Identified)

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Pennsville Township School District
County of Salem

Pennsville, New Jersey

I have audited the financial statements of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School
District, County of Salem, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011, and have
issued my report thereon dated November 30, 2011. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department
of Education, State of New Jersey.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, I considered the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township
School District's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s internal control over financial
reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, inthe normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Board
of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township
School District’s internal control.
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that result in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
-prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s internal
control.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. I noted
certain matters that I reported to the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District in
a separate report entitled Auditor's Management Report On Administrative Findings - Financial,
Compliance, and Performance dated November 30, 2011.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Board of Education of the Pennsville
Township School District's financial statements are free of material misstatement, I performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit and,
accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of
Education, State of New Jersey. I noted certain matters that I reported to the Board of Education of the
Pennsville Township School District in a separate report entitled Auditor’s Management Report on
Administrative Findings - Financial, Compliance, and Performance dated November 30, 2011.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Board
of Education of the Pennsville Township School District, the New Jersey State Department of Education,
and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,

BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

William H. Buckley, II1 ’f

Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 30, 2011
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Ball
Buckley &
Seher, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Y, THE AICPA ALLIANCE FOR CPA FIRMS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND
NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

(Unqualified Opinion on Compliance; No Material Weaknesses
Or Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control Over Compliance Identified)

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Pennsville Township School District
County of Salem

Pennsville, New Jersey

Compliance

I have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District,
County of Salem, State of New Jersey with the types of compliance requirements described in the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State
Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal and state programs for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. The Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District's
major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal and state programs is the
responsibility of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District's management. My
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School
District's compliance based on my audit.

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed
by the Division of Finance and Regulatory Compliance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey;
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and New Jersey
OMB's Circular Letter 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State
Aid. Those standards; OMB Circular A-133, and New Jersey OMB's Circular 04-04 require that I plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Board of
Education of the Pennsville Township School District's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. I believe that my audit
provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit does not provide a legal determination of the Board
of Education of the Pennsville Township School District's compliance with those requirements.
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In my opinion, the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District complied, in all
material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal
and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing
my audit, I considered the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
or state program in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion
on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Board of Education
of the Pennsville Township School District’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s ability to
administer a federal or state program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliance
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is more than inconsequential will
not be prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the Pennsville Township School District’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal or state program will not be prevented or detected by the Board of Education of the Pennsville
Township School District’s internal control.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. The Board of Education of
the Pennsville Township School District’s responses to the findings identified in my audit are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. I did not audit the Board of Education
of the Pennsville Townshlp School District’s response and, accordingly, [ express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, management, the Board
of Education of the Pennsville Township School District, the New Jersey State Department of Education,
and other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Respectfully submitted,
BALL, BUCKLEY AND SEHER, LLP

y 777

William H. Buckley, III
Licensed Public School Accountant No. 86

November 30, 2011
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance include
the activity of all federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Pennsville Township
School District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements.
All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards
and state financial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedules
of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note
1 to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented
in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until
the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last
state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $126,904.00 for the
general fund and ($27,760.34) for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary
Information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for
the general fund and special revenue fund. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in
the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total

General fund $ 50,415.76 $9,711,523.66 $ 9,761,939.42
Special revenue fund 950,713.27 130,333.08 1,081,046.35
Debt service fund - 72,108.00 72,108.00
Food service fund 236.322.90 6.557.23 242.880.13

Total awards and
financial assistance  $1,237.451.93 $ 9.920.521.97 $11.157.973.90
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
- NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF AWARDS
AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
JUNE 30, 2011

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports. :

NOTE 5 - OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions, respectively. The amount reported as TPAF pension
contributions represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the year ended June

30, 2011. TPAF social security contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the
employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Significant deficiencies identified? yes X none reported

Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes X  no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over compliance:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2) Significant deficiencies identified? yes X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133
(section .510(a))? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Numbers(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.027 ID.EA.B
10.555 Federal lunch program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs? $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2011

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Concluded)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and

Type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deficiencies identified that were
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 04-04?

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Numbers(s)

11-495-034-5120-078

$300,000
X yes no
Unqualified Opinion
yes X no
yes X none reported
yes X no

Name of State Program

Equalizatibn aid

N/A

11-495-034-5120-089

Special education categorical aid
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
JUNE 30, 2011
Section II - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations
of provisions of contracts and grant agreements, and abuse related to the financial statements for which
Government Auditing Standards requires reporting in a Circular A-133 audit. See paragraphs 13.15
and 13.35. o

Finding 11-0

No Current Year Findings.

Section 111 - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies audit findings to be reported by Section .510(a) of Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB's Circular Letter 04-04.

Federal and State Awards
Finding 11-0

No Current Year Findings or Questioned Costs.
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PENNSVILLE TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT

JUNE 30, 2011 :

This section identifies the status of prior year findings related to the basic financial statements and
federal and state awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (Section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey
OMB's Circular Letter 04-04.

Status of Prior Year Findings

Finding 10-0

There were no prior year audit findings.
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